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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

ERBMEXZHMARLT ([BXF]) GEMNES

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Shanxi Changcheng
Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Zhi (appointed as director and Chairman on 26
March 2019 and resigned as Chairman on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Song Zhenglai (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Jiao Baoguo (appointed on 26 March 2019)

Ms. Wang Lingling

Mr. Guo Xuzhi (resigned as director and Chairman on
26 March 2019)

Mr. Shen Jian (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Mr. Wu Bo (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 16 February 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng (appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Wang Weizhong (appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Rong Fei (appointed on 26 March 2019)

Ms. Long Yan (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Ms. Ning Lingying (resigned on 26 March 2019)
Ms. Qie Huifang (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Audit Committee

Mr. Xu Yongfeng (Chairman)
(appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Rong Fei (appointed on 26 March 2019)

Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Ms. Long Yan (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Ms. Ning Lingying (resigned on 26 March 2019)
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Mr. Rong Fei (Chairman)
(appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Xu Yongfeng (appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Ms. Long Yan (resigned on 26 March 2019)
Ms. Qie Huifang (resigned on 26 March 2019)
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Corporate Information
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Nomination Committee

Mr. Wu Bo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 February 2020)
Mr. Xu Yongfeng (appointed on 26 March 2019)

Mr. Wang Weizhong (appointed on 26 March 2019)

Mr. Zhao Zhi (appointed on 26 March 2019 and resigned
on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Song Zhenglai (appointed on 15 January 2020 and
resigned on 16 February 2020)

Mr. Guo Xuzhi (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Ms. Long Yan (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Ms. Qie Huifang (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiaoou (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Yonghong

Mr. Yuan Shaopu

Mr. Song Zhenbao

Compliance Officer

Mr. Song Zhenglai (appointed on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Zhao Zhi (appointed on 26 March 2019 and resigned
on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Guo Xuzhi (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Song Zhenglai
(appointed on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Zhao Zhi (appointed on 26 March 2019 and resigned
on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Guo Xuzhi (resigned on 26 March 2019)

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (resigned on 25 June 2020)

Company Secretary
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (resigned on 25 June 2020)

Auditors

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Unit 701, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Head Office and Registered Office

No. 7 Dianzi Street
Demonstration Zone
Shanxi, The PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Room 801, 8th Floor, Winfield Commercial Building
6-8A Prat Avenue, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huaxia Bank Limited

Stock Code
8286
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Chairman’s Statement
FTREHRES

| am honored to serve as the Chairman of the board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Company.

The Board and the management team will strive to
comprehensively improve the Group’s operations, production,
research & development and market development
capabilities in order to enhance corporate value and financial
performance.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all employees for their contributions and to
shareholders and investors for their support.

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
30 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review
Business of the Group

Since the listing of the Company on GEM of the Stock
Exchange in 2004, the Group has been engaging in the
design, research, development, manufacture and sale of image
transmission fiber optic products as its principal business.
Image transmission fiber optics products manufactured by
the Group are image transmission devices containing a rigidly
bundle of optical fibers arranged in an ordered fashion so that
images can be transmitted from one end of the optical fiber
bundle and displayed on the other end of the bundle. A typical
image transmission fiber optic product of the Group would
consist of over 10 million optical fibers.

At present, the Group produces five main products, including
fiber optic inverters, fiber optic straight plates, fiber optic face
plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates. Although
fiber-optic imaging devices (fiber optic inverters, fiber optic
face plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates)
have been increasingly used in medical imaging equipment,
digital photography, physics, biochemistry and other civilian
applications in recent years, they are currently mainly used in
military low-light night vision devices and military low-light
night vision video systems. Its customers are mainly located at
China, Russia and the other Asian countries.

Change in Management Team and Board Composition

The Group underwent the change in certain management
team members since the fourth quarter of 2018. In addition,
as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
March 2019, Mr. Zhao Zhi was appointed as the chairman of
the Board and an executive director of the Company and Mr.
Jiao Baoguo was appointed as an executive director of the
Company. The new management team are fully committed to
improving the Group's operation, production, management,
research and development and market development
capabilities.

Under the leading of the new management team, the Group
has conducted a comprehensive and in-depth review and
analysis of its business, operation and production, including
internal standards of raw materials, internal standards of
products, internal standards of production equipment,
technical deficits in the production process, products passing
rate and production labor management since the fourth
quarter of 2018 and considers that it is necessary to implement
production improvement measures and technology upgrade.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Image Transmission Fiber Optic Production Improvement
Measures and Technology Upgrade

Since the fourth quarter of 2018, the Group have implemented
various measures (the “Operational Measures”) to improve
the business capabilities of the Group including of (i) improving
image transmission fiber optic production process; (ii)
implementing measures to enhance products passing rate and
gross profit margin; (iii) strengthening internal management to
improve operational efficiency and (iv) implementing stringent
cost control measures. As a result of the implementation of
the Operational Measures, the products passing rate and gross
profit margin have both improved and the production volume
has also significantly increased accordingly.

In view of the image transmission fiber optic production
technology upgrade, the Group received a subsidy from the
industrial transformation and upgrading fund in the amount
of RMB20,000,000 (the “ITU Fund”) from the government
of Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province on 26 December 2018,
which specifically supports the industrial transformation and
upgrading and technological transformation project of the
Group. The Group will utilise the ITU Fund to implement image
transmission fiber optic production technology upgrade.

Financial Position and Going Concern Issue

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB65,421,000 and
RMB46,050,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

To improve the financial position of the Group, the directors of
the Company have implemented, including but not limited to,
the following measures (the “Financial Measures”):

(i) Negotiate and implement debts restructuring plan with
shareholders, borrowers and banker;

(ii) Negotiate and implement loan interest reduction plan
with shareholders and borrowers; and

(i)  Seek financial support from shareholders and
borrowers.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Details of the implemented Financial Measures are as follows:

During the first quarter of 2019, the Company entered
into a revised loan agreement with Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited (“Taiyuan
Changcheng”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
pursuant to which Taiyuan Changcheng has agreed to revise
the term of existing loan to the Company in the principal
amount of RMB 18,185,000 to three years from 1 January 2019
to 1 January 2022 and delay the payment of interest for the
years ending 31 December 2019 and 2020 to 2021. During
the first quarter of 2019, the Company entered into revised
loan agreements with a former related company and the
other borrower, pursuant to which a former related company
and the other borrower have agreed to revise the term of
existing loans to the Company to three years from 1 January
2019 to 1 January 2022 and delay the payment of interest for
the years ending 31 December 2019 and 2020 to 2021. The
modification to the terms of the above loans are collectively
referred to as (the “Loan Modification”).

During the second quarter of 2019, the Company entered into
an agreement (i) with Taiyuan Changcheng pursuant to which
Taiyuan Changcheng has agreed to waive the interest for the
year of 2019 for the loan in the amount of RMB11,200,000
and (ii) the other borrower pursuant to which the other
borrower has agreed to waive the interest for the year of 2019
for the loan in the amount of RMB5,824,000.

On 11 July 2019, Taiyuan Changcheng and Beijing Gensir
Venture Capital Management Limited (“Beijing Gensir",
which together with Taiyuan Changcheng, the "Lenders”),
both being the substantial shareholders of the Company, have
entered into a loan agreement with the Company, pursuant to
which the Lenders agreed to grant a term loan in the principal
amount of RMB60,000,000 (“Shareholders' Loan A"”) to the
Company for the purposes of funding of the technological
transformation and upgrade plan and replenishing the
Company's general working capital. On 29 July 2019,
the Lenders had further entered into a supplemental loan
agreement with the Company in relation to the Shareholders'
Loan A.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

On 30 July 2019, the Lenders have entered into another
loan agreement with the Company, pursuant to which the
Lenders agreed to grant a term loan in the principal amount
of RMB20,000,000 (“Shareholders' Loan B"”) to the
Company for the purposes of funding of the technological
transformation and upgrade plan and replenishing the
Company's general working capital.

The key terms of the Shareholders' Loan A and the
Shareholders' Loan B are summarized and disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 31 July 2019. According
to the update from the Lenders, the drawdown date of
the Shareholders' Loan A and Shareholders' Loan B will be
postponed to a time to be fixed with the Company.

In December 2019, the Group renewed the outstanding bank
borrowing in the amount of RMB13,000,000 and extended the
loan term to three years, commencing on 30 December 2019.

Financial Review

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately RMB39,609,000 (2018: RMB26,386,000),
representing an increase of approximately 50.11% as
compared to that of the corresponding financial period. In
particular, the sales of fiber optic inverters and microchannel
plates have increased by approximately RMB9,100,000 and
RMB6,521,000 respectively. As a result of the increase in
the products passing rate, the production volume increased
significantly during the year ended 31 December 2019, leading
to a substantial increase in the turnover.

Cost of sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately RMB21,533,000 (2018: RMB18,810,000),
representing an increase approximately 14.48% as compared to
that of the corresponding financial period.

The gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 was 45.64% (2018: 28.71%). The increase in
the gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i) the effect
of the structurally diluted fixed cost as a result of the increase
in production volume; (ii) the increase in products passing
rate leads to the decrease in production unit costs and (iii) the
effect of implementation of the Operational Measure.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group reported other income, gains and losses amounting
to approximately RMB8,188,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB1,306,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB6,882,000 as compared to
that of the corresponding financial period. The details of
other income, gains and losses are set out in note (9) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group reported administrative and other operating
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 of
approximately RMB24,324,000 (2018: RMB31,754,000),
representing a decrease of approximately RMB7,430,000 as
compared to that of the corresponding financial period. The
decrease in the administrative and other operating expenses
was mainly due to loss allowance for inventories in the amount
of approximately RMBNil and RMB7,736,000 was recognised
and included in the other operating expenses in the financial
year of 2019 and 2018 respectively.

The Group reported finance costs in the amount of
approximately RMB9,189,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB5,272,000), representing an increase of
approximately RMB3,917,000 as compared to that of the
corresponding financial period. The increase in the finance
costs were mainly attributable to (i) the increase in other
borrowings and (ii) the adjustment of relevant interest
rate of one of the other borrowers as a result of the Loan
Modification. The details of finance costs are set out in note
(10) to the consolidated financial statements.

The loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2019
of the Group was approximately RMB8&,134,000 (2018:
RMB29,241,000).

Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2019, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB18,608,000. The financial assistance
of approximately RMB1,293,000 provided by Taiyuan
Changcheng to the Company are secured by certain plant and
machinery and motor vehicles of the Company.
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The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2019, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB665,000.

The Group obtained financial assistance from two connected
persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31 December 2019,
the amount due to Connected Persons was approximately
RMB634,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB291,000, RMB19,000 and RMB26,000
respectively. The directors of the Company consider that the
interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and
Connected Persons are based on normal commercial terms
or better. The financial assistances and interest expenses are
exempted from connected transaction requirements.

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had an outstanding
bank borrowing in the amount of RMB13,000,000 (2018:
RMB13,245,000) which had been renewed in December 2019.
The term of the bank borrowing is three years commencing on
30 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding other
borrowings in the amount of approximately RMB65,177,000
(2018: RMB45,270,000), including non-current portion
of approximately RMB53,049,000 (2018: RMBNil) and
current portion of approximately RMB12,128,000 (2018:
RMB45,270,000).

As at 31 December 2019, a shareholder provided guarantee
to the other borrowers in relating to the other borrowings
to the Group in the amount of RMB3,127,000 (2018:
RMB6,000,000).

Financial Assistance to Related Parties

As at 31 December 2019, the amount due from a shareholder
— Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company Limited was
approximately RMB593,000. As at 31 December 2019, the
amount of approximately RMB593,000 was fully impaired.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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As at 31 December 2019, the amount due from a former
related company — Shanxi Jindi Yucheng Medical Equipments
Company Limited (formerly known as Taiyuan Huamei Medical
Equipments Company Limited) was approximately RMB47,000.
As at 31 December 2019, the amount of approximately
RMB47,000 was fully impaired.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the Group
increased by approximately RMB13,717,000 to approximately
RMB162,034,000 as compared to approximately
RMB148,317,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing an increase of approximately 9.25%.

As at 31 December 2019, the total liabilities of the
Group increased by approximately RMB20,874,000 to
approximately RMB208,084,000 as compared to approximately
RMB187,210,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing an increase of approximately 11.15%.

As at 31 December 2019, the total equity of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB7,157,000 to approximately
negative RMB46,050,000 as compared to approximately
negative RMB38,893,000 as at the end of the previous
financial period.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio (defined as net
debt divided by total share capital plus net debt) of the Group
was approximately 135% (2018: 143%,).

Significant Investment Held

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held interests in
associates with the carrying value of approximately RMB42,000
(2018: RMBNIl).

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

EEENWHE DN

L

—E-NFF+ZA=+—H8 EBK—X
A B8 TUJE%%W%W SEXEARA
A (FIBARNREXEEREERAT )X
EZW\E%MOOOE b'/‘f? hE+=
A=+—H @88 AR®47,000E &
EELRE -

RZE—NF+-_A=+—8 A£ENE
EAEE I ARE 13,717,000 24 A
R #¥162,034,0007T ° 8 _F— BB BRI 4R 4%
B4 AR®148,317,0007T38 h1499.25% o

RZE—hAF+-_A=+—H AEEH
BEATEE NN ARY20,874,0007T &
# A #208,084,0007T © 8 + — Bf Bt HA
M AR187,210,0007T 1 049
11.15%

RZE—NEF+_A=Z+—8 £A£EKN
HEERER VO ARET 157,000 2D E
A R #46,050,0007T © T 7 = — 5 B Bi RS
BB 48 AR#38,893,0007T

BEAREEBL R
R-ZE-NF+-A=+—H KEHEHNE
ANEEH R (B FEER LA A 4258 40
B REE) A BI135% (ZF— )\ F:
143% ) ©

MEBEEARKRE
RZE—NF+-_A=+—8 KEBERHH
SNRTEESNEREmEDN ARE42,000
T(ZEBE—NF: AREZT) -

WERLEHEKE QT
BE-_Z—hhF+-A=+—HILFEH
N AREETERERHEKBAR -

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 3

—E—H



1

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, certain plant and machinery and
medium term leasehold buildings at carrying amount of
approximately RMB134,000 and RMB47,137,000 (2018:
RMB284,000 and RMBNil) respectively were pledged to secure
a bank borrowing to the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s right-of-use asset
located at No. 7 Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi,
the PRC was pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2019, certain plant and machinery
and motor vehicles at carrying amount of approximately
RMB723,000 and RMBNil (2018: RMB1,003,000 and RMBNil)
respectively were pledged to secure the amount due to a
shareholder.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

Exposure of Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets, and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currency of the
Group.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 489
full-time employees. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their experience, performance and value, which they
contribute to the Group.

Additional Information Relating to the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The auditors of the Company issued disclaimer of opinion in
the independent auditors’ report relating to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019. In view of removing the disclaimer
of opinion, the Board will formulate and consider the following
action plan:

(i) Discuss with shareholders to provide the Shareholder
Loan A in the amount of RMB60,000,000 and the
Shareholder Loan B in the amount of RMB20,000,000
as soon as practicable;

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(ii) Continue to strengthen and implement the Financial
Measures and the Operational Measures;

(ili)  Review the possibility of the other fund-raising plan;
and

(iv)  Confirm the settlement schedule of overdue trade
receivable with the trade receivable debtors.

Events After The Reporting Period

(i) Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 15 January 2020, the amendments
to the articles of association of the Company was
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

(i) As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 20 January 2020 and 17 February 2020, Zhao
Zhi tendered his resignation as the chairman of the
Board of the Company on 15 January 2020 and Wu
Bo was appointed as the chairman of the Board of the
Company on 16 February 2020.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Zhi (“"Mr. Zhao"), aged 57, graduated from the
Macau University of Science and Technology and holds a
master’'s degree in business administration. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors, an
executive director, the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee, the compliance officer and the
authorized representative of the Company on 26 March 2019
and ceased to be the chairman of the board of directors, the
chairman and a member of the nomination committee, the
compliance officer and the authorized representative of the
Company on 15 January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhao was the director,
general manager, deputy general manager and party
committee member of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine Co.,
Limited and the party secretary, chairman and director of
Taiyuan Dongshan Coal and Electricity Group Co., Limited. Mr.
Zhao is currently the party secretary and chairman of Taiyuan
Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited.
Mr. Zhao was awarded the Model Worker of Taiyuan City in
1999 and 2005, the Outstanding Entrepreneur of Taiyuan
City in 2007, the Outstanding Entrepreneur and Business
Entrepreneur of Shanxi Province in 2008, the Supermodel
Worker and Meritorious Entrepreneur of Taiyuan City in 2010,
and the Wu Yi Labor Medal of Shanxi Province in 2011. Mr.
Zhao was elected as the representative of the 13th People’s
Congress of Taiyuan City and the representative of the 11th
Congress of Taiyuan City of the Communist Party of China.

Mr. Song Zhenglai (“"Mr. ZL Song”), aged 43, holds a
college degree in accounting from the School of Economics
and Management of Changchun University. Mr. ZL Song was
appointed as an executive director and the vice-chairman of
the board of directors of the Company on 30 November 2017.
Mr. ZL Song was appointed as the chairman and a member
of the nomination committee, the compliance officer and
the authorized representative of the Company on 15 January
2020 and ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee on 16 February 2020. Mr. ZL Song
acted as the financial controller of the Company during the
year and resigned as the financial controller of the Company
on 11 January 2020.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Mr. ZL Song served as the chief financial officer of Changchun
Changling Engine Company Limited from March 2002 to
September 2004, the finance director of Shenzhen Zhonghang
Night Vision Technology Limited from May 2006 to March
2009 and the general manager of Changchun Faw Automotive
Chassis Limited Company from May 2010 to January 2014.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo (“Mr. Jiao"), aged 52, graduated from the
Dalian University of Technology and holds a master’s degree in
engineering. Mr. Jiao was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 26 March 2019. Mr. Jiao acted as the general
manager of the Company effective from 4 February 2019
and resigned as the general manager of the Company on 11
January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jiao was the deputy general
manager of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine and Electricity
Group Co., Limited and the chairman and general manager
of Shanxi Zhihengcheng Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Jiao
is currently the party deputy secretary and executive deputy
general manager of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics
Industrial Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has won the second prize
of the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology Award and
the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology “Golden Bull
Award”. Mr. Jiao has led the team to obtain four utility model
patents, two software copyrights, one appearance patent and
one trademark right, and independently developed a miniature
ECG recorder.

Ms. Wang Lingling (“Ms. Wang”), aged 54, holds a
bachelor’s degree in optoelectronic from the Department of
Physics of Shanxi University and a doctoral degree in material
physics and chemistry from the Changchun University of
Science and Technology. Ms. Wang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 November 2017. Ms.
Wang is currently the vice general manager of technical quality
and the chief engineer of the Company.

Ms. Wang served as the craftsman in the optical fiber plant
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from July 1988 to December 1995, the chief of section
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from January 1996 to December 1998, the vice senior
of workshop of the Company from January 1999 to December
2007, the manager of quality department of the Company
from January 2008 to May 2009 and the vice general manager
of technical quality of the Company from June 2009 to the
present.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang (“Mr. GL Yuan”), aged 58, graduated
from the Changchun University of Science and Technology.
Mr. GL Yuan was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 27 May 2011. Mr. GL Yuan was appointed
as a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. GL Yuan served as the deputy director of the
Strategic Policy Committee of the Company from May 2011 to
November 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. GL Yuan worked in Shanxi
Jinxi Machines Factory from August 1985 to April 1990 and
worked with Taiyuan City Economic Committee from May
1990 to July 2006.

Based on the interests filing disclosure, as at the latest
practicable date, Mr. GL Yuan holds 3,645,000 H shares and
his spouse holds 250,000 H shares of the Company.

Mr. Wu Bo (“"Mr. Wu"”), aged 53, holds economic
management major of Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce. Mr.
Wu was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 30 November 2017 and the chairman of the board of
directors, the chairman and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 16 February 2020.

From February 2008 to the present, Mr. Wu has been the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Ronger
Optics & Electronic Technology Development Company
Limited, the supervisor of Kunming Ronger Optic & Electronic
Technology Development Company Limited and the chairman
of the board of directors of Yunnan Zhongkewei Optical
Instruments Company Limited. Mr. Wu served as the general
manager of Russia Zhenhui Company from April 1997 to
August 2007.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng (“Mr. Xu”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman and
a member of the audit committee, a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Xu, aged 47, graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.
Mr. Xu obtained the Chinese Certified Public Accountant's
Licensing Certificate, the Chinese Certified Tax Agent's
Licensing Certificate and the Chinese Legal Licensing
Certificate. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu worked
in the accounting department of China Construction Bank,
served as the finance manager in Shenzhen Xinnan Industrial
Development Co., Limited, the finance manager in Shenzhen
Rihao Shopping Plaza Co., Limited and the senior audit
manager in Zhonglian Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Wang Weizhong (“Mr. Wang"”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Wang, aged 37, graduated from the Vocational and
Technical College of Shanxi University with a major in
computer networking and a college degree. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wang worked in the marketing department of
Taiyuan Aode Software Engineering Co., Limited, served as the
manager in Jinzhong Sina Information Technology Co., Limited
and the manager in Zhangzhou Hexintong Technology Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Rong Fei (“Mr. Rong"”) was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee and
the chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Rong, aged 32, graduated from Shanxi University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
international economics and trade. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Rong worked in the administrative affairs
department of Huadian Shanxi Energy Co., Limited and served
as the officer of the general management department of
Shanxi Hetai Real Estate Development Co., Limited.
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Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiaoou (“Ms. Han"), aged 42, graduated from
Shanxi Normal University with a major in Chinese language
and holds a postgraduate degree of political science. Ms. Han
was appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 27 May
2011. Ms. Han is currently the chairman of the labor union
and the secretary of the Communist Youth League Committee
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Company
Limited. Ms. Han has been working in the Company since
graduating from Shanxi Normal University in 1999 and is
currently the chairman of the supervisor committee and the
senior of the executive office of the Company.

Mr. Dong Yonghong (“Mr. Dong”), aged 51, graduated
from Shanxi University majoring in economic management.
Mr. Dong was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on
30 November 2017. Mr. Dong has been the project manager
of the research and development centre of the Company since
February 2006.

Mr. Yuan Shaopu (“Mr. SP Yuan”), aged 33, holds a
postgraduate master’s degree from Shanghai University. Mr.
SP Yuan was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on
30 November 2017. Mr. SP Yuan is currently an attorney of
China Commercial Law Firm. Mr. SP Yuan worked in the legal
compliance department of Taikang Pension Share Company
Limited from November 2013 to March 2015.

Mr. Song Zhenbao (“Mr. ZB Song"”), aged 49, holds
a master's degree from Jilin University. Mr. ZB Song was
appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. ZB Song is currently a business management
consultant of Changchun Huagingyuan Technology Company
Limited. Mr. ZB Song was the vice president of Changchun
Yongxin Pharmaceutical from 2006 to 2008 and the chief
consultant of UFIDA Software Company Limited, Jilin Branch
from 2009 to 2011.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESEREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Senior Management

Mr. Fan Jiming ("Mr. Fan"”), aged 58, graduated from Shanxi
Provincial Electronics School. Mr. Fan currently serves as the
director of infrastructure and safety of the Company. Mr. Fan
served as the production manager, the commander of technical
reform department, the manager of purchasing & supply and
the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Fan has
been the deputy general manager of Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited since 1999.

Mr. Qian Yun (“Mr. Qian”), aged 56, graduated from the
Mechanical Department of Taiyuan Polytechnic University. Mr.
Qian is a senior engineer. Mr. Qian currently serves as the
director of enterprise planning of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Qian served as the deputy general
manager of the Taiyuan Sanjin Aluminum Company Limited.
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The board of directors of the Company submit the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company continued to be principally engaged in design,
research, development, manufacture, and sale of image
transmission fibre optic products. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in the notes (18) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment Information

Details of the Group's segmental information for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the notes (8) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-year Financial Summary” of this
annual report.

Business Review and Financial Review

Details of business review and financial review of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and
notes (31) to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31
December 2019, the Company had reserves in the amount to
RMBNil (2018: RMBNil) available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.
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Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company's issued share
capital during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law (Revised) in the
PRC.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in the notes (16) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Staff Retirement Plans

All members of staff are entitled to participate in the public
welfare fund, which was set up for the purpose of ensuring
that the participating employees will have sufficient means
to support their living after retirement. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group reported employer's pension
scheme contributions of approximately RMB5,765,000 (2018:
RMB5,852,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 24% (2018: 36%) and 78% (2018: 89%) of the
Group's total turnover respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's
largest suppler and the five largest supplies accounted for
approximately 40% (2018: 48%) and 62% (2018: 69%) of the
Group's total purchases respectively.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, none of
the directors or supervisors of the Company or their respective
associates or any of the shareholders of the Company who
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital
had any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers
and suppliers.
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Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2019, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB18,608,000. The financial assistance
of approximately RMB1,293,000 provided by Taiyuan
Changcheng to the Company are secured by certain plant and
machinery and motor vehicles of the Company.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2019, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB665,000.

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2019, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB634,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB291,000, RMB19,000 and RMB26,000
respectively. The directors of the Company consider that the
interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and
Connected Persons are based on normal commercial terms
or better. The financial assistances and interest expenses are
exempted from connected transaction requirements.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Directors

The directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Zhi
(appointed as director and Chairman on 26 March 2019 and
resigned as Chairman on 15 January 2020)

Mr. Song Zhenglai (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Jiao Baoguo
(appointed on 26 March 2019)
Ms. Wang Lingling
Mr. Guo Xuzhi
(resigned as director and Chairman on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Shen Jian(resigned on 26 March 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Mr. Wu Bo (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 16 February 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng

(appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Wang Weizhong

(appointed on 26 March 2019)
Mr. Rong Fei

(appointed on 26 March 2019)
Ms. Long Yan

(resigned on 26 March 2019)
Ms. Ning Lingying

(resigned on 26 March 2019)
Ms. Qie Huifang

(resigned on 26 March 2019)

The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the general meeting by the end of each of three-year period.
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Supervisors

The supervisors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Ms. Han Xiaoou (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Yonghong

Mr. Yuan Shaopu

Mr. Song Zhenbao

The supervisors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the general meeting or the employee meeting of the Company
by the end of each of three-year period.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

Emoluments of The Directors and Supervisors and The
Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors' and supervisors' emoluments and the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in the
notes (13) to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors' and Supervisors' Service Agreements

Save as disclosed, none of the directors and supervisors of the
Company has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors' and Supervisors' Interests or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture of the
Company

As at 31 December 2019, the directors or supervisors of the
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company
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Approximate

RERBROGREBERG 2B

Approximate
Approximate

percentage of

percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEELA BEALT BEALT
RER,/HER nER HER 2 B4 Riagz
#e BREALRREZHERSH HERER BAEAL AAt* R A
Yuan Guoliang Personal Interest and Family Interest 3,895,000 - 3.54% 1.26%
REIR EAER R KRR H shares &
(Note 1) (Fi3E1)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * BRE L EAREREL ZME/NE
two decimal places. fiL °
Note: Mz -
1. According to the interests filing disclosure, 3,645,000 H shares 1. RIS B IRATH &= © 3,645,0000% HE%

are registered in the name of Yuan Guoliang and 250,000 H
shares are registered in the name of his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
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Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to

in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the directors of the
Company are aware, persons other than the directors or
supervisors of the Company who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336

of the SFO, were as follows:

FERR

R_TE-NF+-_A=+—HB BARF

=M1

AR 2&

AN Az

S R EIEIEDIZE336 1§

FFEZERBAT BALAEERE
Foh - AR FRED KARBIIR 1 o A 1
HRABMALTIT :

Approximate

Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEALT BEALH BEXLT
RER/HR nERZ HER 2 B4 RA@g
i BEANARECMERSH HEREE A B> R A
Domestic Shares:
NER:
Zhang Shao Hui Interest in a controlled corporation 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
ROB REHRRA ER domestic shares
NEK
(Note 1) (Fit&E1)
Beijing Gensir Registered and beneficial owner of 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
Venture Capital the domestic shares and interest  domestic shares
Management Limited in a controlled corporation NER
R EEERE NERZELREREAAR (Note 2) (Fi5E2)
ERARAA REH AR ER
Taiyuan Changcheng Registered and beneficial owner of 80,160,000 40.31% - 25.95%
Optics Electronics the domestic shares domestic shares
Industrial Company NERBERERHEBA nNER
Limited
ARTRAAEF
BREERT
Liaoning Shuguang Registered and beneficial owner of 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
Group the domestic shares domestic shares
Company Limited NER 2 EZR NER
FEEEE EaEEA
BREERT
Li Jin Dian Interest in a controlled corporation 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
33 REHRRA ER domestic shares
NER
(Note 3) (Fi3)
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Approximate

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of

percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEALRA BEALR BEALR
RER,/HE nERZ HER 2 B4 [N} A
#e BREALRREZHERSH HERER BOEDH* AR R A
Liu Gui Ying Family interest 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
fER FIEER domestic shares
AR
(Note 3) (Fi3)
Taiyuan Tanghai Registered and beneficial owner of 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Automatic Control the domestic shares domestic shares
Company Limited NER 2 BZR AR
KRE® EREAA
BBRHERAT
Liu Jiang Interest in a controlled Corporation 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
i SEHARAER domestic shares
RER
(Note 4) (Fi54)
Qiu Gui Qin Family interest 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
BEE X R domestic shares

NE K
(Note 4) (ffizt4)

Note:

Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest
two decimal places.

According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these
domestic shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered
in the name of Beijing Gensir Venture Capital Management
Limited (”Beijing Gensir”), a company whose issued shares
were reportedly registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang
Shao Hui. As Zhang Shao Hui is entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at the
general meeting of Beijing Gensir, for the purpose of the
SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to be interested in the entire
57,300,000 domestic shares held by Beijing Gensir.
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According to the interests filing disclosure, the rest of these
domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are registered
in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company
Limited (“Taiyuan Tanghai”), a company whose issued shares
were reportedly registered as to approximately 36.37% in
the name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for
the purpose of the SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to be
interested in the entire 24,900,000 domestic shares held by
Taiyuan Tanghai.

According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these
domestic shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in
the name of Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares
were reportedly registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang
Shao Hui. The rest of these domestic shares (24,900,000
domestic shares) are registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai,
a company whose issued shares were reportedly registered as
to approximately 36.37% in the name of Beijing Gensir. As
Beijing Gensir is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one-third or more of the voting power at the general meeting
of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the purpose of the SFO, Beijing Gensir
is deemed to be interested in the entire 57,300,000 domestic
shares held by Beijing Gensir and 24,900,000 domestic shares
held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

According to the interests filing disclosure, these 34,000,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Liaoning
Shuguang Group Company Limited (“Liaoning Shuguang”),
a company whose issued shares were reportedly registered
as to approximately 48.11% in the name of Li Jin Dian. As Li
Jin Dian is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at the general meeting of
Liaoning Shuguang, for the purpose of the SFO, Li Jin Dian is
deemed to be interested in the entire 34,000,000 domestic
shares held by Liaoning Shuguang. Liu Gui Ying, as the spouse
of Li Jin Dian, is taken to be interested in the shares held by Li
Jin Dian by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

According to the interests filing disclosure, these 24,900,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai,
a company whose issued shares were reportedly registered
as to approximately 47.29% in the name of Liu Jiang. As Liu
Jiang is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third
or more of the voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan
Tanghai, for the propose of the SFO, Liu Jiang is deemed to
be interested in the entire 24,900,000 domestic shares held
by Taiyuan Tanghai. Qiu Gui Qin, as the spouse of Liu Jiang, is
taken to be interested in the shares held by Liu Jiang by virtue
of Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of other person who, as at 31 December 2019, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Group do not have share option scheme.

Directors' and Supervisors' Rights to Acquire H Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company was granted options
to subscribe for H shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2019, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company nor
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
acquire H shares of the Company or had exercised any such
right during the year.

Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed, no contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or a supervisor
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2019 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Competing Interests

The directors of the Company believe that none of the
directors, supervisors and management shareholders of the
Company nor any of their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Confirmation of Independence by Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from all the incumbent independent non-
executive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent.

Report of the Directors
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EEEHE

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, at
least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has established an audit committee. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu
Yongfeng, Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang respectively.
Mr. Xu Yongfeng has been appointed as the chairman of
the audit committee. The audit committee has reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 were audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
("Zhonghui”) whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the board of directors of the Company that
Zhonghui be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

On behalf of the board of directors

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
30 June 2020

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

ZERARERE
BIBEARRARMAEBZ AFEER ARARAF
BEMA RARSEE  ARELEAR
NE BB BEITRAR Z225% °

EREES

BIEGEM EM MR AISE5.28 %5.33(8 2 R
EARBERIEBZEEG -BEREES
CEEREBEAEMREBAER ZHKE
HES RBREELRANBEITERG - FBZE
BN RAMBBILIERITESTXREL
EREREER —ZIIERTEETRHR T
HHEK TR EECDERTAEERETE
IR -ERLESCENAEREHEZ
TE-NF+_AZ+—BLFEZEEZ
FEEE-

B ED
HE_T-NEF+_A=+—HBIEFEZ
REMBRERBPELESTMELHA
RO ([HE])FZ REEIBRE
EERRBFASRTEEM -BRLZES
ERAARESFERENEEBRBEF K
G LEEDE /NN B ZEE -

V2N
A

hxE
AEEZEXEERHBRANAFRIER
BRG] —H#ie

RRE=S

R

FE
FEILTEEKRD
—E-FFANA=1H



Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company recognizes the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed
company and is committed to adopting the standards of
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board of the Company, the
Company has complied with the code provisions except for (i)
no arrangement of insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the directors of the Company (code provisions A1.8)
due to insufficient budget provided and (ii) two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors of the
Company did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company dated 21 June 2019 (code provisions A6.7) due to
other engagements.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 (the “Required Standard
of Dealings”) of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors of the Company, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
Required Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions
by directors for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company has the collective
responsibility for leadership of, and for promoting the success
of, the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board of directors of the Company currently comprises
nine directors, of which four are executive directors, namely
Mr. Zhao Zhi, Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Jiao Baoguo and Ms.
Wang Lingling; two non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuan
Guoliang and Mr. Wu Bo and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng, Mr. Wang Weizhong and
Mr. Rong Fei.

The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the general meeting by the end of each of three-year period.
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The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from all the incumbent independent non-
executive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
members of the board of directors of the Company have
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among themselves and between the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

BOARD MEETING

The board of directors of the Company met eleven times
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and the attendance
of the members is as follows:

KARBEWENIAR BB IREBILIEHTT
EERIEGEM MR AISE5.0903 1 2 F
BB R WRBREEEE LT -

RARBEEMA ARAEFEKEZ
BN N TR MBI %
B RKEsEMmENHE@R-

EEge3
HE-E-NF+-A=+—HLFE:
ARTEERERIT T REH KA
AR

Number of
attendance
Name of director EENE HERE
Mr. Zhao Zhi* A A 11/11
Mr. Song Zhenglai NBUR A 11/11
Mr. Jiao Baoguo* ERE] ST 11/11
Ms. Wang Lingling ITRKRLZL 11/11
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REIRESE 11/11
Mr. Wu Bo REFTE 11/11
Mr. Xu Yongfeng* Srek A, A 11/11
Mr. Wang Weizhong* FEREE 11/11
Mr. Rong Fei* R 11/11
Mr. Guo Xuzhi SBEL & 0/11
Mr. Shen Jian* == e o 0/11
Ms. Long Yan* BE U 20 1 o/
Ms. Ning Lingying* EIRRAL L 0/11
Ms. Qie Huifang* ABEFE At 0/11
* appointed on 26 March 2019 * ZE-NF=ZAZ+BEZMF
# resigned on 26 March 2019 # —E-NAF=ZRAZF+HET

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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DIRECTOR’S CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The directors of the Company should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution into
the board of directors of the Company remains informed and
relevant. The individual training record of each director of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 is as
follows:

TREREE

EEFEARIRER

AAREFHDHEBEEELR ILE
I 5B R EAEE R ReE - IR IR F A
BERTARRASERELYABEY
BER-BE_E-NF+_A=+—H1E
FE - ARABEFEZEI 2 EARLZEN
T

Updating on the
business, operations
and corporate
governance matter

FBXL KER
TtEEREEZ
Name of director EEns R &R
Mr. Zhao Zhi* A T 4
Mr. Song Zhenglai REBREHE v/
Mr. Jiao Baoguo* RIRE LA 4
Ms. Wang Lingling FrRERXZ L 4
Mr. Yuan Guoliang RERESE v
Mr. Wu Bo R FHE v/
Mr. Xu Yongfeng* ST ok B 5 A 4
Mr. Wang Weizhong* FRIREAE v/
Mr. Rong Fei* BT 4
Mr. Guo Xuzhi# SEELE! N/A 38 A
Mr. Shen Jian R N/A 38 A
Ms. Long Yan* BE U 2z £ N/A 735 A
Ms. Ning Lingying* BICEL L N/A 8 B
Ms. Qie Huifang* MEF 2L+ N/A i
* appointed on 26 March 2019 * —E-NF=ZAZT+BEZE
# resigned on 26 March 2019 # —E-RF=ZAZTREEE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse the board of directors and sees increasing
diversity at the board of directors’ level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the
“Policy”). The nomination committee has reviewed the
Policy during the year ended 31 December 2019 and where
appropriate, recommends revision to the board of directors of
the Company for consideration and approval.

EEEZUBER
ARBTHEMEARNAEBEZTLEZEKE
s YRAREFEZTTERERFART]
GFEINEBTLR - ARAERMES
SEZTALBR (K BRE]) - BEZF—AN
FH-A=+—"HLEFE RELZEEE
EHNZBR INAERAARRESSE
tERIERT % AR E B Rk -

W E R AL B RO ERA T
“E-hEER

35



36

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the nomination committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate: qualification and experience, character
and integrity, accomplishment and reputation, relevant skills
and experience to contribute to the board of directors,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest,
diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Following the resignation of Mr. Guo Xuzhi as the chairman
of the board of directors and an executive director of the
Company on 26 March 2019, Mr. Zhao Zhi was elected as the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company with effect
from 26 March 2019. Mr. Zhao Zhi resigned as the chairman
of the board of directors of the Company on 15 January 2020.
Mr. Wu Bo was appointed as the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company on 16 February 2020.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo acted as the general manager of the Company
effective from 4 February 2019 and resigned as the general
manager of the Company on 11 January 2020. Following the
resignation of Mr. Jiao Baoguo as the general manager of
the Company, Mr. Zhao Taibing was appointed as the general
manager of the Company with effect from 15 January 2020.

The chairman of the board of directors of the Company
provides leadership for the board of directors of the Company
and ensures that the board of directors of the Company works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the management
of the business of the Group, implementation of the policies
and objectives set out by the board of directors of the
Company and is accountable to the board of directors of the
Company for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, each committee with its specific terms of reference
as set out in the CG Code.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code. The audit
committee comprises two independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng,
Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr. Xu Yongfeng was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

The primary duties of the audit committee include (i) to
consider the appointment of external auditors and any
questions of resignation or dismissal; (i) to review financial
information and (iii) to oversight of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system. The
audit committee discharged its duties by reviewing the
financial matters, quarterly, interim and annual financial
reports and financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2019. The audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been reviewed by the audit
committee.

The audit committee met four times during the year ended
31 December 2019 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:

TREREE

EREES
ARADRUBZZEG HEARBER
BENatXE AT - ERZEEAMEA
B IEAITERFFKESLE - RRFEER
—HZFMITEETRER K EEMK - 7k
TEEEZIRERZES®ERE-

ERZERZIERERE )BEINE
ZBAD 2 ZE N BB BNR B B 2 (M
B (i)ZR B % B R (i) B B M 5 E R
Eg BREBEMANEERR - BE-T
—hF+-A=+—HILFE EXEES
ERTERE BEREHNMKEE FE-
THIRFEMBRE MM BRER -BERE
BEgEHBE T NFTA=1—
RItFEZRELZYHRE-

BE-Z-NE+-_A=+—HLFE
ERZREERTONAEH KEZHRE
IGRAUNNE

Number of
attendance
Name of member RE®A HERE
Mr. Xu Yongfeng* ST Rk B S A 4/4
Mr. Rong Fei* ERFR ST A+ 4/4
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REREE 4/4
Ms. Long Yan* HEYh 2 0/4
Ms. Ning Lingying* BB T 0/4
* appointed on 26 March 2019 * —T-NFZA-TBEZT
# resigned on 26 March 2019 # —E-AFE=ZA-+BEET

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code.
The remuneration committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Rong Fei, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr.
Rong Fei was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(i) to make recommendation to the board of directors on the
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals. The remuneration reviewed the remuneration policy
of all directors’ and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2019.

The remuneration committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:
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B AEEEGR D ERRO)RE RitE
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HE-F-NF+-A=+—ALTE
FMEERERTARH REZHE
BRI :

Number of
attendance
Name of member REHE HERE
Mr. Rong Fei* RS~ 171
Mr. Xu Yongfeng* T Rk B S A A
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REIREHE A
Ms. Long Yan* FEYh 2 0n
Ms. Qie Huifang* MEF LT 0/1
* appointed on 26 March 2019 * —E-NF=ZAZT+BEZE
# resigned on 26 March 2019 # —E-NF=AZT+BEBE

Remuneration paid to members of senior management
(including directors and supervisors) fell within the following
bands:

FNEREEEAS (DEEERES) M
AT THIRE

Number of
Individuals
AE
RMB120,000 or below AR¥120,000T8 A T 12
RMB120,001 — RMB300,000 AR#120,0017T— A R#300,0007T 3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE BEZEES
The Company has established a nomination committee RAFEHRITIREZEZES HEZHEEBES

with written terms of reference in consistence with the CG
Code. The nomination committee comprises the chairman of
the board of directors and two independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Wu Bo, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Wang
Weizhong. Mr. Wu Bo was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include (i) to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board of directors; (ii) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the board of directors and (iii) to make recommendations to
the board of directors on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors. The nomination reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the board of directors of the Company and
the board diversity policy during the year ended 31 December
2019.

The nomination committee met two times during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

TREREE
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Number of
attendance
Name of member REHE H X
Mr. Wu Bo " R FE" 0/2
Mr. Xu Yongfeng* Ik B 5 A 172
Mr. Wang Weizhong* FRRLE 172
Mr. Song Zhenglai ** RBUR £ 0/2
Mr. Zhao Zhi "™ i R v 1/2
Mr. Guo Xuzhi =B 172
Ms. Long Yan* BE U 20 - 0/2
Ms. Qie Huifang* MEFLZ L 172
A appointed on 16 February 2020 A ZEZTF_A+NAEEMF
AN appointed on 15 January 2020 and resigned on 16 February AN T ZF—A+HBERET IR

2020

ANN - appointed on 26 March 2019 and resigned on 15 January
2020

* appointed on 26 March 2019

# resigned on 26 March 2019

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 21

June 2019.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for
presenting annual; interim; and quarterly reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosure requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The audit committee reviewed the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports and financial statements
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The respective responsibilities of the directors of the Company
and the auditors for preparing financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The board of directors of the Company acknowledged
its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. In light of the size
and scale of the Group’s businesses, the board of directors
of the Company is delegated with the responsibility for
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an ongoing basis and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Therefore, the Group currently do not have
an internal audit department. During the revision of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, the
board of directors of the Company identified that the Group
has material uncertainty in going concern.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB65,421,000 and
RMB46,050,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The directors of the Company have been taking active steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These steps
include (i) negotiating and implementing debts restructuring
plan with shareholders, borrowers and banker; (ii) negotiating
and implementing loan interest reduction plan with
shareholders and borrowers and (iii) seeking financial support
from shareholders and borrowers.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve the
liquidity position of the Group, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors provide services to the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The remuneration of the
external auditors for the provision of audit service for the year
under review is HK$680,000 and the provision of non-audit
services is HK$1,264,000.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 were audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
(“Zhonghui”) whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the board of directors of the Company that
Zhonghui be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposal at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to article 53 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") be
convened on the written requisition of shareholder holding
more than 10% (including 10%) of the voting shares issued by
the Company. When the board of directors receives the written
requisition, the board of directors shall convene an EGM within
two months.

Pursuant to article 73 of the articles of association of the
Company, if shareholders request to convene an EGM or
a class meeting of shareholders, the following procedures
should be followed: an EGM may be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
holding more than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”). Such written requisition
must specify the resolution(s) to be considered in the EGM
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such principal
office, the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in
such article for convening an EGM. If the board of directors of
the Company does not convene the EGM within 30 days from
the receipt of such requisition, the Requisitionists are entitled
to convene the EGM themselves within four months after the
board of directors of the Company received their requisition at
the Company’s expense.

ENQUIRIES PUT TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or by email to ccoegvw@126.com, for
the attention of the secretary of the board of directors of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with investors to update the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, announcements and
circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in
order to maintain a high level of transparency, and to ensure
there is no selective disclosure of inside information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the ESG report of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight
Equipment Co. Ltd. (the "Group”), highlighting its
Environmental, Social, and Governance (the “"ESG")
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations in the PRC including the headquarter office and
production facilities from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group
to report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders including
investors, shareholders and employees of the Group have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and to
review areas of attention which will help the business meets its
potential growth and be prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDER'S FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at ccoegw@126.com.

l. Environmental

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development and compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group
endeavors to minimise the environmental impact of the
business activities.

The Group has established system to ensure
environmental compliance. It seeks to optimise its
production by adopting low energy consumption and
environmental pollution techniques, implementing
environmental-friendly waste disposal methods and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the
employees through regular trainings. The management
team has the overall responsibility for environmental
protection matters within the Group.
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Emissions

The manufacturing process of the Group produces
certain amount of waste water, solid waste and to
a lesser extent gases. In accordance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations and our relevant
environmental policies, the Group must ensure
that national emissions standards are met. Regular
assessments are conducted on the air and greenhouse
gas emissions of the production facilities, as well as
the generation and disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. The Group does not generate
significant air emissions or hazardous waste.

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to electricity and water consumed at its
production facilities and office. Under our relevant
environmental policies, the Group proactively seeks
opportunities for increasing operating efficiency to
reduce the use of resources, such as energy savings
on lights and air-conditioning systems. The Group also
closely monitors the utilisation of resources and reports
to senior management on this aspect of performance.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the business, in addition to the
above-mentioned emissions and resource usage, the
Group does not have any direct and significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources in the course
of its operation.

The Group has established system to ensure
environmental compliance by adopting low energy
consumption and environmental pollution techniques.
The Group has also appointed dedicated staff to
monitor the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations as well as review and update the internal
environmental protection policies.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Social

The Group believes that one of the key aspects
of its success is the good relationship it maintains
with employees. The Group provides a friendly and
harmonious working environment.

Employment and Labor Practices
Employment

The Group had a total number of approximately
489 employees as of 31 December 2019. The Group
rewards and recognises performing staff by providing a
competitive remuneration package and implementing a
sound performance appraisal system with appropriate
incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, and the relevant administrative
rules and measures are strictly enforced. These rules
and regulations specify the requirements relating to
employment, labor relations, employees’ remuneration
and welfare to protect the rights of employees.

Health and Safety

The Group has been committed to protect employees’
health and safety. It maintains the occupational health
and workplace safety management system and policies
in conformity to the internationally applied occupational
health and safety management systems requirements
and in strict compliance with the relevant regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group did not encounter
any major accidents during the operation.

Development and Training

Training is an important way to improve the overall
quality and provide comprehensive development of the
employees. The Group has continuously perfected and
modified the employee training management system,
established a multilevel training system, created various
learning opportunities for the employees, in order to
enhance their competence, job skills, knowledge and
performance.
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In daily operations, the Group provides induction
training for new employees. Experienced employees
will act as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs.
The Group arranges the trainings designated according
to the roles and responsibilities of the employees,
mainly includes human resources management,
managerial skills, legal affairs, risk management, project
running, financial and auditing, technical research and
development, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety etc. The Group also updates the latest
information of the industry and laws and regulations
which is essential to the Group’s operation and their job
responsibilities from time to time.

Labor Standards

The Group provides its staff with a safe, health,
comfortable working environment with labor protection,
reasonable remuneration and various welfares. The
Group enters employment contract with each of
its employee in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and also prohibits forced labor.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

To provide top quality services to customers, the
Group carefully sourced its raw materials, packaging
materials and equipment with standardised procurement
procedure and policies. The Group’s procurement policy
and its comprehensive procurement management
systems help screening out undesirable products in
the aspects of raw materials, packaging materials and
equipment selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Suppliers for raw materials, packaging materials
and equipment are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as reputation, technical skills
and consistent production quality, compliance with
industrial standards, so as to procure superior goods
and services from the most competitive sources. The
Group’s research and development department set out
product specification for the suppliers to follow, while
the quality control department performs sample test to
ensure that goods and materials received by the Group
are in compliance with the quality and specifications
before they are accepted and transferred to the
warehouse.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Product Responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible
standard with all the products sold. The Group has
established relevant policies which cover product quality
guarantee and safety and set up a dedicated quality
control department. They work in collaboration with
the Group’s research and development department,
procurement department and production and
warehousing department to ensure that the products
are of high quality and safe and comply with all
applicable laws and regulations.

Anti-corruption

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to
code of business ethics and put any corruption bribe
behavior to an end as stipulated in the employment
contracts and the relevant policies of the Group. In the
cases of conflict of interest, it must be reported to the
Group’s management.

Community
Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities
in order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a peaceful
community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It
gives employees the opportunities to find out more
about the issues of the society and environment and
reinforce the Group’s corporate values.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANXI CHANGCHENG
MICROLIGHT EQUIPMENT CO. LTD.

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment
Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 52 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and whether the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
1. Inventories

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
the inventories of approximately RMB10,977,000 as at
31 December 2019. There are no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could adopt to determine whether
any allowance for non-recovery of the amount should be
made in the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(continued)

2. Trade receivables

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
the trade receivables of approximately RMB18,662,000
as at 31 December 2019. There are no other satisfactory
audit procedures that we could adopt to determine
whether any allowance for non-recovery of the
amount should be made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Any adjustments to the above figures might have a significant
consequential effect on the consolidated financial performance
for the year, the consolidated financial position as at 31
December 2019 and the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

3. Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements which mentions that the Group
incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB8,120,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019 the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately RMB65,421,000 and RMB46,050,000
respectively. In addition, the Group had outstanding
bank and other borrowings amounting to approximately
RMB25,128,000 which would be due for repayment
within the next twelve months. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(continued)

3. Material uncertainty related to going concern
(continued)

The validity of the going concern assumption on which
the consolidated financial statements are prepared is
dependent on the favourable outcomes of the steps
being taken by the Directors as described in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements. Should the going
concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may
have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may
need to be realised at other than the amounts at which
they are currently recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In addition, the Group may have
to provide for further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets as current assets.

In the absence of sufficient evidence, we were unable to
ascertain whether the assumptions made by the Directors in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis were appropriate.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeEEsRkHEMZEKBKER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB) (UARBZ3)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
[t 5% ARMFT ARE T
REVENUE W& 8 39,609 26,386
Cost of sales $HE AR (21,533) (18,810)
Gross profit ER 18,076 7,576
Other income, gains and losses HapA Wz K EiE 9 8,188 1,306
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (977) (925)
Administrative and other operating THREMEERAST
expenses (24,324) (31,754)
Share of gain/(loss) of an associate PME—FREE N E z k=
/(E18) 93 (172)
Finance costs M %E R 10 (9,189) (5,272)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBATEE (8,133) (29,241)
Income tax expense FTSHMAX 11 (1) -

LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FAFBERERZEEEASE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12 (8,134) (29,241)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE LI TEEEREE:

TO:
Owners of the Company FNETE 2PN (8,120) (29,237)
Non-controlling interests FERER (14) (4)
(8,134) (29,241)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR U TEMFEARZHEBHALE:
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company EARHEEA (8,120) (29,237)
Non-controlling interests FERER (14) (4)
(8,134) (29,241)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB) EREB(AR®TT) 15
~ Basic and diluted -EARREE (0.026) (0.095)

5 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 RZ-ZZE—NF+_-_H=+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (UANREEZ2)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it 2t AR¥ T ARMTFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e R E 16 107,900 91,358
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 10,241 10,534
Interests in associates RN I ey 19 42 -
118,183 101,892
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 10,977 9,030
Trade receivables e E BRI 21 28,952 12,646
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIB ~ 1= N H At JE IR
receivables 18 22 3,778 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 23 144 20,749
43,851 46,425
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables Vﬁféf% AR 24 9,032 9,796
Accruals and other payables JE &t 5K I8 T2 H L FE 1 5k 25 69,277 62,826
Contract liabilities aWmaE 26 5,170 5,904
Amounts due to shareholders J?Eﬁﬂxﬁ 18 27 665 19,517
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 28 25,128 58,515
109,272 156,558
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFHE (65,421) (110,133)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEME
LIABILITIES 52,762 (8,241)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Deferred government grants BERTE R 29 27,155 30,652
Amounts due to shareholders JE A< % BB 3R IR 27 18,608 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 28 53,049 -
98,812 30,652
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE (46,050) (38,893)

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 53
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 RZ-ZE—hNF+_A=+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (UAEKZ2)
2019 2018
—E-RE ZZTN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
fft & AR¥FT ARETT
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of XA T HEE AELER
the Company
Share capital fi% A< 30 30,886 30,886
Reserves ffi 18 31 (76,893) (69,750)
(46,007) (38,864)
Non-controlling interests FiZRER (43) (29)
TOTAL EQUITY RERERE (46,050) (38,893)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 123 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Zhao Zhi
HE
Director

EF

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

FEREI1BENFAVBHREAN_-_ZF_F
FRAZTEEESH AT RENH
WHNATEEFREREE:

BTN ESE:

Jiao Baoguo
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaRg X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #Z_—F

(Expressed in RMB)

Attributable to owners of the Company

—NF+ZA=1+—HILFE

(AAREZ3)

AARERAES
Statutory Non-
Issued Capital surplus Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
¥
BRA  ERBH BB AR EHER @i FERER aRg
RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
AEEFT  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-f-H 30,886 18,561 11,853 - (70,927) (9,627) (25) (9,652)
Total comprehensive loss EMZEBEEE
for the year - - - - (29,237) (29,237) @ (29,241)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
TZAZt-8 30,886 18,561 11,853 - (100,164) (38,864) (29) (38,893)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 30,886 18,561 11,853 - (100,164) (38,864) (29) (38,893)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BEZE T RsAfE - - 7 - (7) - - -
Total comprehensive loss EMZEBEER
for the year - - - - (8,120) (8,120) (14) (8,134)
Gain on modification of RRERBIT 2
shareholder loans - - - 977 - 977 - 977
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
T-R=1-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 977 (108,291) (46,007) 43) (46,050)

*

consolidated statement of financial position.

BfEfE-e

i Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁktéﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the * W EEEERESAMBRARAZE

255
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (UARBZ3)
2019 2018
—E-NF “E-N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FR N
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES B2 EXBE v EERE
Loss before tax BRI E 1B (8,133) (29,241)
Adjustments for: MRATERIBEHAE
Interest expense FEFX 9,189 5,272
Depreciation of items of property, plant and ME BMEREBEBRE
equipment 6,034 4,807
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FCRAEEEFEER 293 293
Amortisation of deferred government grants  iEE IR T & B 34 (4,487) (1,140)
Interest income FEWA (30) (4)
(Reversal of)/allowance for inventories (BE)GFEEE (4,197) 7,736
Loss allowance provision for trade receivables  fE U & 5 Bk 7 B9 18 B 55 1,235 901
Impairment on investments in associates REE AR 2 IRERE 19 167
Share of (gain)/loss of an associate AE—REBE AR (W) /B (93) 172
Gain on loans modification BERERI 2 Wam (1,159) -
Fair value gain on a new loan HERZ AR ERE (2,347) -
Operating cash flows before working RETHRERE KFTEBEELH
capital changes o) (3,676) (11,037)
Change in inventories FEEZY 2,250 (3,249)
Change in trade receivables EWRESEREH (17,541) (2,958)
Change in prepayments, deposits and other ~ JBRFIB & R H M B U FRIBE
receivables 222 (1,698)
Change in trade payables ENEZEREZS (764) (1,677)
Change in accruals and other payables JEET A R H fth e TRIB & B 6,451 13,052
Change in contract liabilities BNEEEY (734) 104
Cash used in operating activities REXBHARE (13,792) (7,463)
Income tax paid ERETEH (1 -
Government grants received B E B 990 21,359
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from K& XK (FTH) EXRSREF
operating activities ] (12,803) 13,896
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZFE2EERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BELHEE (22,576) (20,116)
Interest received BFE 30 4
Repayment from/(advance to) an associate —REEDAZERS
(BRF—REEDF]) 32 (172)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETFEFFARESRETE (22,514) (20,284)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2019




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ=_—ZF

(Expressed in RMB)

—NF+ZA=+—HIFE
(AAREZ5)

2019 2018
—E-NE “E-N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZE2EERE
Advance from shareholders RERFRHEBR 423 5,180
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2 FEHIE 22,015 28,078
Repayment of bank and other borrowings RITREMEEZER (3,897) (5,234)
Interest paid BAFE (3.829) (2,504)
Net cash flows generated from financing ®ETEMELRESREFHE
activities 14,712 25,520
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND B & RELZEEE (HD) EhE
CASH EQUIVALENTS # (20,605) 19,132
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RFE# 2R & KIREEHEER 20,749 1,617
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RELzHERHSEEEE 144 20,749
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRESERBERIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re REBTHEH 144 20,749
AT B 5 BB

1§o%EeR 57
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"”) on 10 November 2000 as a joint
stock limited company. The Company’s H shares are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of this annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) included design,
research, development, manufacture and sale of
image transmission fibre optic products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB8,120,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019
the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately RMB65,421,000 and RMB46,050,000
respectively. In addition, the Group had outstanding
bank and other borrowings amounting to approximately
RMB25,128,000 which would be due for repayment
within the next twelve months. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

The Group intends to maintain its strong business
relationship with its banker to maintain its continuing
support. The Directors are of the opinion that there are
good track records or relationship with its banker which
enhance the Group's ability to renew the current Bank
borrowing upon expiry.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

In addition, the directors of the Company have been
taking active steps to improve the liquidity position
of the Group. These steps include (i) negotiating and
implementing debts restructuring plan with shareholders,
borrowers and banker; (i) negotiating and implementing
loan interest reduction plan with shareholders and
borrowers and (iii) seeking financial support from
shareholders and borrowers.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve
the liquidity position of the Group, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Should
the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2019. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years
except as stated below.

2.

FEEEEXE (F)
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EREMBEELBREREN D EIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases which
had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under
HKAS 17 "Leases.”

HKFRS 16 has been applied retrospectively and resulted
in changes in the consolidated amounts reported in the
financial statements as follows:

R RSB E BB
WmEER (F)

EEMBREENE 165 HE]
KRB B B REERE16571L -
AEBEARET S ERFE7
HIHEIENBEAR[KEHEINHE
EREAEEEIEERE-

AEBCEYPERAEBHHRE LR
F165  BEUBMEMEINNEGE
SHEHRTIE

31 December 1 January

2018 2018

RZE-NF RZIZE-N\F

+ZA=+—H —H—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT AREFIT

Increase in right-of-use assets FREEEEN 10,534 10,827
Decrease in land use right 1 I {5 A AR D (10,534) (10,827)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

4. EEGFHBE(4F)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESHBE (&)

(continued)

(b) Associates (continued) (b) BEERT (&)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (i) the
Group's share of the net assets of that associate plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a Joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

(c) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’'s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair values in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEESTHXR (&)

(continued)
(c) HhEmE (&)
(iii) %"EREBRE

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful
lives are as follows:

Medium term leasehold 50 years or over the
buildings lease terms, whichever
is shorter
Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the
lease terms, whichever

is shorter
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESHBE (&)

(continued)
(e) Leases (e) HE
The Group as lessee EEBEREAEA

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased
assets are available for use by the Group. Right-
of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation
of right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to write
off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The
principal useful lives are as follows:
Land use rights 50 years or over the
lease terms, whichever
is shorter

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs
and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases
with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets are assets of value below US$ 5,000.

The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESHBE (&)

(continued)
EREE:

(h) Financial assets (h)

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or
sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are
initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case
of investments at fair value through profit or
loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

HRIR A DIRFRE AN BT
SHRAERRABARKESR
EAEmEERR S HEERE
RBARNM IR WIRAFE
MEZFEMEEERRIERS
FRAERN P HERR  MEdZ X P ERT
ABmEMEERRIN - ER
FEFABENEREEZER
FE A6 32 55 P 7N & BB 10 18 25 T

27
e ©

AEE 2 S REE TR N IER

N\ K -
DR

REBHERLABCEHEE
HEmEE (BRERER IR
il UK IR 75 & LA N R RIER
AR :

- BHABAEENKRIA
MRS MHEBEN: K&

- BEMANKRIREEAR
HELERKREARE KR
EEASHNEME TR
%O

SEEERREMERME AR

BEH AR E SR 2 B8
Bt

W E R AL B RO ERA T
“E-hEER

69



70

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”)
for trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit
risk on a financial instrument (other than trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables)
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit
or loss as an impairment gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

(k)

U]

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with
reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between
the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised product or service exceeds one year,
the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over
a product or service to a customer. Depending on
the terms of a contract and the laws that apply
to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A
performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Other revenue

(i) Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.

(i) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(g) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

4. EEGFHBE(4F)

(p) HAbWzs

(i)

(ii)

FB U AL BB F HOK
FERR

HeWAEHERRZE
RROETER o

() EEEF

(i)

BEEZE 2R
BEFRERHRBEER
BEEZARREER K
NAEHEEEERSEH
RAZRBFHAZERFR
Ko &= HR AR 75 18 B0 ik /T 7R
EZRBEFHEE-

BERBRLRERRERK
fREF 16 T HER -

(i) EBIKEZEE

AEBERMARERER
HFOR KT B R AR &
B X g & 2 5t 8l R &
BREEAXRFEZANLA
Ho-BEDMBERNKREN
B AR R AKE AR
S RNPAY

(iii) # 112 A5 35 7

IR ISR RN NN S TR
RERRH A FERAIE R ALK
B HEREBBARAL Y M X
IR ARNE (A&
EHHRE) R -

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR

713



7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of
the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(®)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are deducted from the carrying amount of
the assets. The grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Repayment of a grant related to income is applied
first against any unamortised deferred income set
up in respect of the grant. To the extent that the
repayment exceeds any such deferred income, or
where no deferred income exists, the repayment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Repayment
of a grant related to an asset is recorded by
increasing the carrying amount of the asset or
reducing the deferred income by the amount
repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation
that would have been recognised in profit or loss
to date in the absence of the grant is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent
of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEESTHXR (&)

(continued)
(v) BEEER (42)

(v) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to

(b)

— B E 8 AR A AN 5 B ) RE B
T (REER) HEXERTA

ATE—1ER: (&)

V) REBEAAKERAEAR
EIF% BEENESRT
BB R R AT & -

the Group. If the Group is itself such a ﬁ%ﬁ AEBXREH B —IEE
plan, the sponsoring employers are also ZAEPHEET /A
related to the Group. SEREH S

(v The entity is controlled or jointly (vi) FZE @) # R EA
controlled by a person identified in (a). 72 i) 2 F [F] 428 )

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key

(vii) (@) &% BB — A (8 A
ZERBENEATE K
AZER(REENER
A HBIREEAS -

(viii) ZERBIELEMBEEED
EHWEQTWK Alsk

management personnel services to the RARWE RRIEME
Company or to a parent of the Company. EBABRS-
(w) Impairment of assets (w) EERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except inventories and receivables
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Impairment of assets (continued)

(x)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in
the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the consolidated financial statements apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below.

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the favourable outcomes of
the steps being taken by the Directors as described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, depreciation and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are evaluated for possible impairment on a
specific asset basis or in groups of similar assets,
as applicable. This process requires management’s
estimate of the fair value with reference to a
valuation report of each asset or group of assets
less cost of disposal. For any instance where this
evaluation process indicates impairment, the
relevant asset’s carrying amount is written down
to the recoverable amount and the amount of the
write-down is charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income.
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A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables, deposits

(c)

and prepayments

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and
prepayments is made based on an assessment of
the recoverability of trade receivables, deposits
and prepayments. The assessment of impairment
of trade receivables, deposits and prepayments
involves the use of estimates and judgments.
An estimate for doubtful debts is made when
collection of the full amount is no longer probable,
as supported by objective evidence using available
contemporary and historical information to evaluate
the exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the
future is different from the original estimates, such
differences will affect the carrying amount of trade
receivables, deposits and prepayments and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expense. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer taste and competitor actions.
The Group will reassess the estimates by the end of
each reporting period.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the
Group consist of debt which includes interest-bearing
loans and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
periods.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios, so that
it can continue to provide returns for the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debts. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB46,007,000 in negative (2018: RMB38,864,000 in
negative), which the management considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and
the projected strategic investment opportunities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt.
Net debt includes trade payables, accrued liabilities,
deposits received and other payables, amounts due to
shareholders and bank and other borrowing less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital includes equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the

6. EXREERER (&)
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end of the reporting period were as follows: RBEHRRCERBEERDT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARMTFIT
Trade payables B E SRR 9,032 9,796
Accruals and other payables FEEt A N H A ER X 69,277 62,826
Amounts due to shareholders FESH AR B FR IR 19,273 19,517
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 78,177 58,515
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoReRAEEMEIER (144) (20,749)
Net debt &% %5 175,615 129,905
Equity attributable to owners of the KANBEE ANEGEZ
Company (46,007) (38,864)
Capital and net debt BARREBFEE 129,608 91,041
Gearing ratio BERBER 135% 143%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B 75 & B i 3

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in the
functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk arising from its ordinary course of business
due to its small customer bases and limited
counterparties involved. This credit risk mainly arises
from the Group's trade and other receivables. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate provision for
impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts.
There is no requirement for collaterals by the Group.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk of approximately
RMB10,286,000 (2018: RMB1,947,000) and
RMB22,082,000 (2018: RMB9,696,000) out of total
trade receivables of approximately RMB28,952,000
(2018: RMB12,646,000) as at 31 December
2019, which was arising from the Group’s largest
debtor and the three (2018: three) largest debtors
respectively.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BRERER (&)
(continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERM (&)

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower; and

- significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or
receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 270 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

AEBLREREENRE A
ZEARRENYIAHER 2
EHRE  NIZBEEEFN G
MEEZFERREESNERE
HI A B8 0 - N SR 772 B P
BAREREEEXFZAEMLE
e LEEMTIIER :

- ABEEFR:

- EHEBEEIERLE
HMEABD: R

— EHIEMERRTAZE
28 BEEH 2R
HRED -

i J & B2 EF AR HEB
B308 - AR EFEERE R A RIS
e 8RR FZE T EERE LR
BIEARY 60 A SRR - RIE R
BEHREN-

TREENRAERBEENKL
(FIanfE s AN EX R AR EE
B8 FRET 8 B o i B IS A
RBHI1E270 8 REEBITA AN
R AKEBEEMIEERER
X FE WK IA © fid B R K FE IR
W A ASE (EERATR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted

7. MEERER (&)

(c)

(d)

RSN

MR A EEL M EAT SRR
£ (- AEE Y MERSREA
TEMBHERLHPE-

AEEZBRAERNEE BAT R
BHNRBE TR BEAE
B RFF A H IR KT - AL

AEESRARKKBRARER

cash flows, of the Group’'s financial liabilities is as MEEAE T :
follows:
Total
contractual Total
Less than 1 undiscounted carrying
2019 On demand year  Over 1 year cash flow amount
BORER
“E-1E RER PIME 150 RERELE BREE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETRT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
Trade payables EHESER 7,791 1,241 - 9,032 9,032
Accruals and other payables B FEREMENTE 60,467 8,810 - 69,277 69,277
Amounts due to shareholders BT REFE 665 - 19,293 19,958 19,273
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 25,128 - 55,444 80,572 78,177
94,051 10,051 74,737 178,839 175,759

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—FT—hNWF+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BBEARER (&)
(continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d) "REBELEREK (&)
Total
contractual Total
Less than 1 undiscounted carrying
2018 On demand year  Over 1 year cash flow amount
BHIAREEH
Remng
—T-N\% BEX DIE 3N BE  eREE

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT

Trade payables ENZ SET 7,479 2,317 - 9,796 9,796
Accruals and other payables  JEZZ Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂf‘é’ﬁ 53,611 9,215 - 62,826 62,826
Amounts due to shareholders & (< % 52X 19,517 - - 19,517 19,517
Bank and other borrowings 87 &ﬁﬁﬂ B 57,014 1,723 - 58,737 58,515
137,621 13,255 - 150,876 150,654
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) €WMMIAEZSE

At 31 December

W+=B=+-8
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETT

Financial assets: CREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost REERA AT EZEREE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (PIEBELLELZMHEIER)
— Trade receivables —RENE SRR 28,952 12,646
— Financial assets included in —FIARNR EE REM
prepayments, deposits and BURFIEZ CREE
other receivables 2,200 3,035
— Cash and cash equivalents -RekReFEER 144 20,749
31,296 36,430
Financial liabilities: cRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHER A EZEMEAE
— Trade payables —ERE SRR 9,032 9,796
— Financial liabilities included in — R AR HRIB R EA
accruals and other payables ENFEZERARE 69,277 62,826
— Amounts due to shareholders —EIRE RIE 19,273 19,517
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMEE 78,177 58,515
175,759 150,654

m&&ﬁﬁttaﬂjg@ﬁﬁﬁﬂj 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HILFZE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. UHERER (&)
(continued)
(f) Fair value ) ARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial FEMBRAKRFIRMENAEE SR/
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the EEACRABBEZREERAZEN
consolidated statement of financial position NAEEE-
approximate their respective fair values.
REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WEk&EEI-EER
INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue and contribution to loss were rEBZU=REBEBEREZERE
mainly derived from its sale of fiber optic inverters, fiber HENXMAGRSE KEENR L@
optic straight plates, fiber optic face plates, fiber optic R FeERMBER (SBR[ RBE
tapers, fiber optic tapers billets and microchannel plates ml) WHRAE-—Z2HHE HAE
(collectively referred to as “Fiber Optic Products”), which E(AIEEREREE ([FELKER
is regarded as a single reportable segment in a manner FED ERNL2RERUHE RS
consistent with the way in which information is reported [ SE A R vy BV =] L)USQ
internally to the Directors, being the chief operating EERBBRBEZAERHAFELE
decision maker (“CODM"), for purposes of resource AREERNT 2R e B RH A
allocation and performance assessment. The measures of FEREERIEEHBRRER -5
loss and of total assets and liabilities are consistent with Eiut - BREEEERIN BHEZ5HE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other DA e
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of financial position which are reported internally to the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented
other than entity-wide disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures EREE
(a) Information about products (a) EBERZEH
The following table sets forth the total sales to FAMIINBEPIHEN BT (IR
external customers by product and the percentage Emt)RiEBKE s8N T
of total revenue by product during the year: (REMFHENTER:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT % ARKFT %
Fiber optic inverters it RElEES 18,351 46 9,251 35
Fiber optic straight plates Y4 E 1k 4,871 12 6,119 23
Fiber optic face plates 3@ E R 408 1 325 1
Fiber optic tapers ¥ 8 1,400 4 3,213 13
Microchannel plates BB R 13,887 35 7,366 28
Others Hitp 692 2 112 0
39,609 100 26,386 100

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WHERKEDLEER (&)

INFORMATION (continued)
Entity-wide disclosures (continued)

EENE (&)
(b) HEHEH

(b) Geographical information

The Group principally operates in the PRC and the
Group’s non-current assets are all located in Shanxi,
the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

ZF%@IEEAEF‘.Lﬁ@% i
REB 7 IERBE E DI
B9 L 7g -

AEERBINBFF 2 Wk 123t

from external customers by geographical location: HAUBESTHAT :
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARBF T
The PRC A 22,193 15,127
Hong Kong &% 9,030 3,742
Russia fik 7 Hi 7,566 4,779
Europe BN 813 2,733
Taiwan = 7 5
39,609 26,386

(c) Information about major customers (c) BEBEFEEFEFZER

Revenue from major customers, each of whom
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is
set out below:

XEIRZ)E (BREBEPIHRI
HWZ10%8 A B) 2 W&
T

2019 2018

—E-AEF —E-N\#F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBFT

Customer A BEH 7,462 9,485
Customer B (Note) ¥R (Ha) N/A 4,779
Customer C (Note) PN (M) N/A 3,484
Customer D (Note) BET (KfE) N/A 3,043
Customer E (Note) BRI (M) 9,368 N/A
Customer F (Note) BFEC (M) 6,335 N/A
Customer G (Note) BERE (Wit) 4,569 N/A

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total sales of the Group for the relevant
periods.

et - 8 e s I B R A 5 48
MEEzRHEERMES
10% °

mﬁﬁiﬁwﬁsmﬁﬁﬁmm 91
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (continued)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

8. WakE&sBEHR (&)

BERE (&)

(d) REFEFENZWEDHF

Manufacturing and sales of

Segment Fiber Optic Products
o HBERHEREE
2019 2018
—E-REFE  —ZTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFT
Geographical markets Hh [ 117 %5
The PRC Fh 22,193 15,127
Hong Kong &% 9,030 3,742
Russia % 78 2 7,566 4,779
Europe M 813 2,733
Taiwan =D 7 5
39,609 26,386
Major products FEEMD
Fiber optic inverters It 45 7 5 25 18,351 9,251
Fiber optic straight plates HEER 4,871 6,119
Fiber optic face plates St 4 E AR 408 325
Fiber optic tapers 3¢ o 1,400 3,213
Microchannel plates (EERERT 13,887 7,366
Others Hib 692 112
39,609 26,386
Timing of revenue recognition T 3R i e 5 T
At a point in time AR 39,609 26,386
Over time B B - -
39,609 26,386

9 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WEREEIEEN (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
Manufacturing and sales of Fiber Optic Products HEEMBERHEE
The Group manufactures and sells of fiber optic prodcuts rEBRERATPHEEAEER-
to the customers. Sales are recognised when control of HENBEREmOITHER (BEmR
the products has transferred, being when the products RNEF)ER WA FERIEFER
are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled FPHERNEXREFPEESERN
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of BIEMABNARBITOER -
the products and the customer has obtained legal titles to
the products.
Sales to customers are normally made with credit HEMBLA TEFPIOKAEFHR -
terms of 90 days. For new customers, deposits or cash HRHERP A ERREeE S
on delivery may be required. Deposits received are MR- BN IEEERABEHNEE-
recognised as a contract liability.
A receivable is recognised when the products are EWHIEREMXNTEPRER
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time SRR B A EGY  BRAEMNK
that the consideration is unconditional because only the EI HA 2 BT & 78 B8 BRF A 7T 447
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HMWA KWmRER
2019 2018
—E-RAEFE  —ZTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFT
Amortisation of deferred government BT & Bh 88
grants 4,487 1,140
Bank interest income RITH B YA 30 4
Gross rental income from transmitting B ae AR

station 23 93

Gain on loan modification EEACHPAE: 1,159 -
Fair value gain on a new loan FERZ A ERR 2,347 -
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) fE X Uz, (E18) 5 (42)
Others Hith 137 111

8,188 1,306

LT E B EMRAERA T 93
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

11.

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B ER

2019 2018
—E-hE —T\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARMTFIT
Interest on bank borrowing RITIEE R B 1,424 1,326
Interest on other borrowings HEmEER A 8,154 3,389
Interest on amounts due to shareholders  J&{~f i& 3 7% 18 2 % B 797 557
10,375 5,272
Less: Interest wavier granted R 2R B (1,186) -
9,189 5,272

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. AEHEAX
2019 2018
—E-hAFE —EN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARKFT

Current PRC Enterprise income tax BNEARR B 1R R PRIST

— Charge for the year ~FRHER 1 -
Deferred tax EERIE - -
Total tax charge for the year FABIENRR BT 1 -

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018:RMB Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the Jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

According to the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC, the Company, which operates in the Taiyuan
Economic and Technology Development Zone (K &R A% /7
B TFI 2 [R), the PRC, and which is registered as a New
and High Technical Enterprise (7 #1517 1™ %), is entitled
to a concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%
over 3 years, beginning on 29 November 2018. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Company was still
entitled to a concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of
15% (2018: 15%).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled
to the loss for the year multiplied by applicable tax rate as

1.

Frigsipx (&)

FRATE T X AT B F R EERIAE
AR R SRR T -

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARTFIT
Loss before tax Br A& 18 (8,133) (29,241)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate B AR R 15%
of 15% (2018: 15%) —ZET—N\F:15%)
FTE 2R (1,220) (4,386)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax HBEBRR N 2 BB &
purposes (526) (9)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for “Na] 15 B % 2 Fi 75 52 2
tax purposes 96 1,392
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERARBEEZ RS E 1,651 3,003
Income tax expenses FT 5% 2 1 -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB48,095,000
(2018: RMB47,170,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB48,095,000 at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB47,177,000) is due to expire within one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the Group in which the losses arise.

R-ZE—NE+=-_A=+—H0 &&
& 7] AR 88 R B m A 2 B s R B A
TRIEEE 4 A R#48,095,0007T (=
T— \F: AR¥47,170,0007T) ° H
A 5K 38 R R 2R E FI OB - B £
ZEREEBERBERELERBEE - K
—E-AF+-A=+—8 fHiE
B AT IEEEHARA48,095,0007T
(ZZE—N%F: AR¥47,177,0007T)
BR—E2RFRNER ARKERE
BRI ASRE 2 RRERBEF -

W E R AL B RO ERA T
“E-hEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FRAEE
The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging/ AEBZzFABBREMR (GTA)
(crediting): LARIER:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARETFT
Auditors’ remuneration % ERD B & 608 442
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 21,533 18,810
Staff costs (including directors’ EINRA(BIEESEHE) :
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TENHTFS 17,256 15,308
Pension scheme contributions RRET SR 5,765 5,852
23,021 21,160
Depreciation of items of property, plant  #% - HELREEB T E
and equipment 6,034 4,807
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHEEEITEE R 293 293
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss PE XN (W) B8 FE (5) 42
Share of (gain)/loss of an associate DM — KB E R A 2
(W#=) &' (93) 172
Research and development costs i 35 B fA B AR AR 1,298 402
Impairment on investments in associates R EE& A E 2R ERE 19 167
(Reversal of)/allowance for inventories (BE) / TFEBEE (4,197) 7,736
Loss allowance provision for trade FTIREWE SRR EERE
receivables 1,235 901

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERABBREFALIZEHE

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
Details of directors’

(a) EBERFEFTHAEZHE

FRNEEREBITHARZ H

and chief executive’s

remuneration for the year are as follows: FEIEMS
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFT
Fees we 348 372
Other emoluments H AN 2
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYEF
in kind 320 170
Pension scheme contributions IRRET 23R 23 9
691 551

The emoluments of each director and the chief
executive, on a named basis, are set out below:

BEENRIBZTRABZHER
HEREHMT

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_E-NF+-A=t-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
Eic D11 BIK
e REMER BELER WemE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
izt AREFRT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors: Hi1EE:
Song Zhenglai FNLEN 48 114 - 162
Wang Lingling FrRr 36 82 23 141
Zhao Zhi HE (i) 36 - - 36
Jiao Baoguo RIRE (i) 27 124 - 151
Guo Xuzhi =BE (ii) 12 - - 12
Shen Jian B (ii) 9 - - 9
Non-executive directors: EBTES:
Yuan Guoliang rER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo 2K 36 - - 36
Xu Yongfeng? KA (i) 27 - - 27
Wang Weizhong* FRA (i) 27 - - 27
Rong Feif R (i) 27 - - 27
Long Yan* B (ii) 9 - - 9
Ning Lingying* ERE (1i) 9 - - 9
Qie Huifang* MEHF (ii) 9 - - 9
348 320 23 691

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

13. EENRTERBBREHFALTZM
& (&)

(a) EBERTEFTHAEZHE

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-\§+_A=1+—-HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions  emoluments
e 2R RIK
we  HMREMN  FHEfR  Weas
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fiid ARBFrT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors: HITES:
song Zhenglai REOK 48 60 - 108
Wang Lingling IRR 48 35 4 87
Zhao Zhi HE (i) - - - -
Jiao Baoguo ERE (i) - - - -
Guo Xuzhi Bl (ii) 48 45 - 93
Shen Jian B g (ii) 48 30 5 83
Non-executive directors: ERTES:
Yuan Guoliang rER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo R 36 - - 36
Xu Yongfeng? ATk (i) - - - -
Wang Weizhong? IR (i) _ _ _ _
Rong Feif Eik (1) - - - -
Long Yan* 30 (ii) 36 - - 36
Ning Lingying* ERHE (ii 36 - - 36
Qie Huifang® BER (ii) 36 - - 36
372 170 9 551
# Independent non-executive directors # BYERTES
Notes: Bt i

(i) These directors were appointed on 26 March 2019.

(i) These directors were resigned on 26 March 2019.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EEREEREFALTZH
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (E&)
(b) SUPERVISORS’' REMUNERATION (b) EEE=FH A
Details of supervisors’ remuneration for the year are FAESZHMNFBROT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E—-AEF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTIT
Fees we - -
Other emoluments =
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fa ZENEWEF
in kind 145 118
Pension scheme contributions BIREFEIEE R 39 13
184 131
The emoluments of each supervisor, on a named BEEZHMRGRENWOT

basis, are set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-E-nF+-A=+-BLEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
g4 ZHR Rk

e  RER  HEHAR HekE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRL ARETT ARETR

Han Xiaoou
Dong Yonghong
Song Zhenbao
Yuan Shaopu

BRE
ERE
RiRE

REH

- 75 22 97
- 60 17 77
- 5 - 5
- 145 39 184

LT E B EMRAERA T 99
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

13. EENRTERBBREHFALTZM
& (&)
(b) EZH®M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_ZT-\E+-A=1+-HIEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions  emoluments
e 2R RIK

e EMER  HEER Mees
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANRBTIL ARETL ARETL ARETT

Han Xiaoou BEE
Dong Yonghong ESiRA
Song Zhenbao RIRE
Yuan Shaopu rERE

There was no arrangement under which a director,
the chief executive or a supervisor waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to a director, the chief executive or a
supervisor as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

- 52 8 60
- 56 5 61
- 5 - 5
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A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTE BB HFALTZM

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (&)
(c) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL (0 EBBESHFALIZEHE

EMOLUMENTS

Three (2018: one) of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group were the directors whose
emolument is set out in the above. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, two (2018: four)
employees’ emoluments of the Company were as
follows:

rEBREESHFALERE=A
(ZE—N\F:—F)ESF =Bl
SHBENLEX -HE=Z—AN
F+-A=+—HILEE AR
AME (ZE—N\F:UZ)E
B2z T :

2019 2018
—2-hE —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and e R REYWER

benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIR R

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

227 815
22 4
249 819

SR T 590 B e B R
TEARAR Y BEFES AN
AR

Number of employees
BEAH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F

Nil — HK$ 1,000,000

During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

T E % ¥1,000,0007T

FRAEELERFESENIF
EFRTRABZ&SFEESXN
EAE - EAHBEMASINE
IRER B0 2 SRR S R B4 ME

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

14.

15.

16.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMBS8,120,000 (2018: RMB29,237,000) and 308,860,000
(2018: 308,860,000) shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

There were no diluted potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

14.

15.

3=\
EFTRBETHE-T - NFR=
T—\E+ZAST—AILEEES
ZEFBE -

BRERE

BREXER
EREAREEDREBEARGES A
FEMRE B ARKS,120,0007T (=&
— N\F: AR#29,237,000T) & F
AT 31T IR 19308,860,000 iR (==
— J\£E : 308,860,000% ) 51 & o

SREBEEE
BEZT-NFRZF-N\F+ZA
=t BLEFEREREBITEERY
ER e

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. WE -BMERRE
Medium
term
leasehold  Leasehold  Plant and Furniture Motor Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  and fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
vERERT RENELE RERKE HURLE RE  KEIR it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFR
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-hEFZF=1-H
osT Ak
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A-H 70,248 3 46,610 1,844 408 34,828 153,972
Additions HE 21,780 - m 73 - - 2,576
Transferred from Contruction in BEEERTE
progress 34,828 - - - - (34,828) -
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=+-8 126856 34 47333 1917 408 - 176,548
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: ZitinE:
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-F-H 22,385 2 37,980 1815 408 - 62,614
Provided during the year EREfE 2,984 3 3033 14 - - 6,034
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=1-H 25,369 29 41,013 1,829 408 - 68,648
CARRYING AMOUNT: BEE:
At 31 December 2019 RIF-NETZAZ+-8 101487 5 6,320 88 - - 107,900

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ME- -BERSZE (&)
(continued)
Medium
term
leasehold  Leasehold  Plantand  Furniture Motor Construction
buildings  improvements  machinery  and fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
hEEERT RENEEE HEREE HBURRE fE  KRIR E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR AREFR AREFRL ARETR AREFT AREFT ARETR
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-NETZB=1-H
COST: w:
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\E-F—H 68,806 34 45,992 1835 408 16,781 133,856
Additions RE 44 - 618 9 - 19,445 20,116
Transferred from Contruction in BRATRIR
progress 1,398 - - - - (1,39) -
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-F=+-H 70,248 34 46,610 1,844 408 34,828 153,972
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: ZihE:
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\E-F—H 21,051 23 34,517 1,808 408 - 57807
Provided during the year EnElE 1,334 3 3,463 7 - - 4,807
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-F=+-H 22,385 26 37,980 1,815 408 - 62,614
CARRYING AMOUNT: FHE:
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-F=+-H 47,863 8 8,630 29 - 34,828 91,358

As at 31 December 2019, certain plant and machinery
and medium term leasehold buildings at carrying amount
of approximately RMB134,000 and RMB47,137,000
(2018: RMB284,000 and RMBNIl) respectively has been
pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the Group (note
28).

As at 31 December 2019, certain plant and machinery
and motor vehicles at carrying amount of approximately
RMB723,000 and RMB Nil (2018: RMB1,003,000 and
RMB Nil) respectively has been pledged to secure the
amount due to a shareholder (note 27).

R-ZE—hhE+_A=+—80 E@
B B4 AR 134,000t M AR HEE
47,137,000t (ZZE—N\F: AR
284,000t R ARBZE L) 2 & TR
ERh#ENARFPHEEEFEER
EAAREBRITEE 2T (K&
28) °

R-E—hhE+-_A=+—80 E@
B9 B4 AR #723,0007T & A R
T (ZZE—N\F: AR%1,003,000
TRARBETL) 2HEREER A
BHEERUEREN —(IRERIEZ
AR (P 5E27) ©

W E R AL B RO ERA T
“E-hEER
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EERERAEEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEHBEERE:
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%® T ARMTFIT
At 31 December: R+=-—A=+—8:
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Land use right — TP A 10,241 10,534
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Year ended 31 December: BE+-—A=1+—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {F HEEENEE M
- Land use right — b A 293 293
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s land use R-ZE-—HhER-_ZE—NE+_HA
right located at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, =t+—8 KNEBEMRTEHLARSE
Shanxi, the PRC has been pledged to a bank to secure a EEFH/IEH L HMERERERT
bank borrowing to the Group (note 28). —MERIT 1ERAEBEXK Z —1HIR

TEE (M5E28) -

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES

18. M B 2 F

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Percentage of

RBERRZ B ABFBOT

Place of Registered/  equity interests
incorporation/ Paid up share  attributable to

Company name registration capital the Company  Principal activities
SMRL/ SRR N Y.

RAAR B BREX BRERSL FEEH

Directly held:

BEERE:

Shanxi Changcheng Huiging Environmental PRC RMB1,000,000/ 55%  Wholesale of
Technology Company Limited* RMB200,000* household
("Changcheng Huiging”) water purifiers

IIERHEBRRMEBERDA B AR¥1,000,0007T,/ KRB E
(TRBEE]) AR #200,0007T*

Taiyuan Changcheng Weiguang Weitong ~ PRC RMB15,000,000/ 100%  Design, research,
Electronics Company Limited* RMBNIL development,
(“Changcheng Weitong”) manufacture

and sales of
optoelectronic
and chemical
glass products

ARRBMAMBEFRRARLA hE AR #15,000,0007T et R BE

([RMbE]) /S AREET REEXERILER
BEmM

Taiyuan Changcheng Feibo Optoelectronic  PRC RMB20,000,000/ 100%  Design, research,
Technology Company Limited* RMBNIL" development,
("Changcheng Feibo”) manufacture and

sales of fiber optics
products and water
purifiers

ARRBMAFEAERNEZARAA g AE#20,000,0007T Rat MR R BE
(TRM3EE]) JSAREERL REEXGERRF

e
Shanxi Shansite Optoelectronics Technology PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100%  Sales of optoelectronic
Co., Limited* (“Shansite") RMBNIL® and fiber
optics products
AR BRFEEMRARLAA ([RRF]) PE AR#5,000,0007T,/ HERERABER
ARBE e

WA RBMAEEMROERD A

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—ZF

18. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE

18. BT (&)

19.

*

The English names are for identification only

The registered capital of Changcheng Huiqging is
RMB1,000,000 of which RMB110,000 has been paid by
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Changcheng Weitong and Changcheng Feibo were
established in the PRC with limited liability on 21
June 2016. The registered capital of Changcheng
Weitong and Changcheng Feibo is RMB15,000,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively of which none has been
paid by the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
Changcheng Weitong and Changcheng Feibo have not yet
started operation for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Shansite was established in the PRC with limited liability
on 5 February 2018. The registered captial of Shansite is
RMB5,000,000 of which none has been paid by the Group
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group had no subsidiary which has material non-
controlling interests for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

* BN AREHRBS

# ERESZEZMERARBARKE
1,000,0007T - £+ AR #110,000
TAEBER -_ZE-NERER-F
—N\F+ZA=+—H&IT-

" EEMBLEERFER 2T —XRF
ANAZtT—BEHRBERZIAEERA
Ale REMBRERMIEFHEME
A5 Rl A AR E15,000,0007T & A
R #20,000,0000 AEBER ==
—NERZZFE-NF+ZA=1+—
B & ME R R B R
REEBREBE T —hLER-F
—N\F+ZA=F+—HLEFEHE
PR & S 7S o

e PREBFER-_ZE— N \F_AABHEH
Bl S BB R AR B EMEMM
&R A AN RH5,000,0005T 0 H A A

—NER=ZZT-NF+=A
St —HASEYESZFEME
z]go

BE_ZT-NER=_F-N\F+_H

=+- Eljtif K’ilﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁ
RS B D

19. REtE QR ZEH

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T

Unlisted investments in PRC RAPBMIELETRE
Share of net assets Ffﬁiéf?%‘@ 2,606 2,513
Due from associates JE LG B N B FRIE 907 939
3,513 3,452
Impairment on investments in associates F B & A & 2 & FE (3,471) (3,452)
42 -

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Registered/
Paid up share

19. REEE

Percentage of
equity interests
attributable to

DNE R (F)

R EHR 2B 2 R A

FEWT

Company name registration capital the Company  Principal activities
HMRL/ S,/ ERFMER
RAER BRI BREX BRERSL FEEH
Shanxi Huayuan Transport Optical PRC RMB 11,000,000/ 36.36%  Development of fibre
Technology and Engineering Company RMB11,000,000 optic intelligent
Limited* (“Huayuan Transport”) transport system
business in the PRC
IEEEXBAERMIRARA P AR#11,000,0007T, NP B R A S e
(iii‘n ARH11,000,0007T BEAREB AR
Taiyuan Changcheng Luojiguang Optical ~ PRC RMB2,000,000/ 35.00%  Manufacturing,
Technology Company Limited* RMB1,720,000¢ processing,
("Changcheng Luojiguang”) research and
development and
sales of electronic
components
and optical
subcomponents
ARERHBERERBEBERAA F AR%2,000,0007T,/ EFRHRAETHRNT
(IRMBEX]) AR¥1,720,0007 MAEE I HE
RHE
Taiyuan Weiguang Feifan Education PRC RMB100,000/ 49.00%  Education information
Management Consultant Company RMBNIL* consultation,
Limited* (“Weiguang Feifan”) organizing cultural
and artistic exchange
activities, housing
lease
REENFENHEEREARRAA e AR ¥100,0007T,/ HEEMER BBX
(T# e IERT) ARBZT" EREMRRES
FEEE

WA RBMAEEMROERD A

—B-NEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HILFZE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

* The English names are for identification only

# The registered capital of Changcheng Luojiguang is
RMB2,000,000 of which RMB420,000 has been paid by

the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-

free and not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
impairment losses of approximately RMB3,471,000
(2018: RMB3,452,000) in respect of the interest in the
associates mainly due to uncertainties surrounding the

industry in which the associate operates.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements and the
associates are not considered to be individually material

to the Group.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity

method.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

Weiguang Feifan was established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 November 2017. The registered capital of
Weiguang Feifan is RMB100,000 of which none has been
paid by the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

19. E’\‘Hﬁ“ I NFE 2R ()

RN A THEHRZT

# RHBEEL2AMERNRBARKE
2,000,0007T - HF A K #420,000
TAEBER -_ZE-NERER-F
—N\F+ZA=+—H&IT-

" BHIENLBR-_ZE—F+—AN
HRAPBEIKZZBRAGEHEHRIE
Rz MERAEAR100,0007T
EPRZZE-NFRZZTE-NF
+Z A=+ —BASEETES
=N

FEUCHE 2 N BIFADEER  REK
BER—FRNEE-

T-NF+-A=+—80 %K%
l,s-f Bt N E) 2 s R R B 1B 4
AR®3,471,000C (ZZF—N\F: A
R ¥3,452,00070) * £ 2 HRZHE
RAIFIREZITEBESZNTHBPAZ
FTEL -

BE QR AERAR LR M
BERAANR BB ZE QBT HRAESE
Pl AEEmMEBEKN-

TRIRAEBOEFRBER TS XL
PERNBEAFNEE MEBES
MRS AAIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. Rt DB REm (&)

2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETT
At 31 December Rt+t=A=+—H
Carrying amounts of interests EREEE 42 -

Year ended 31 December BE+T-A=1+—HLEE

(Gain)/Loss from continuing operations &L L (Yz5) B8 (93) 172
Other comprehensive (gain)/loss Hip2m (W) B8 - -
Total comprehensive (gain)/loss 2HE (W) BEesE (93) 172

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate Huayuan Transport because
the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group's
interest in the associate. As at 31 December 2019, the
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses of the associate
is approximately RMB1,918,000 (2018: RMB1,918,000).

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate Changcheng Luojiguang
because the share of losses of the associate exceeded
the Group’s interest in the associate. As at 31 December
2019, the cumulatively unrecognised share of losses
of the associate is approximately RMB Nil (2018:
RMB116,725).

ARG ZHE AREBEEBEAREE
REE AR ERI B ER AR
SEERIEERDZBERNE 2%
E-RN—_ZT—h&F +-_A=+—8"
ZETARERO DB AR AEIBLOA
R #1,918,000t (ZE—N\F: AR
#1,918,0007T) °

AR EMEBE A NEERBEAEE
RZBE N RNED AEBERLE
BRHEELBEARRBEE L ¥
E-R—E—NF+=-_A=+—8"
ML ZE S AR R A ERE B
WARBET(ZE—N\E: ARK
116,7257C) °

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Raw materials R 44 1,700 1,740
Work in progress TER 5,470 4,791
Finished goods RIRK Gh 3,807 2,499
10,977 9,030

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EIWE S RX
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —F-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMKTFIT
Trade receivables EE 5 RN 33,541 16,000
Less: impairment of trade receivables & : FEU B 5 B8R R E (4,589) (3,354)
28,952 12,646

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

RBEHR BRESEFIREER

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net HERR MG EBE ZBE®R M T
of provisions, is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKETT
0 to 90 days 0%290H 6,043 8,780
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 16,118 2,273
181 to 365 days 181H£365H 6,503 1,593
Over 365 days 365H A 288 -
28,952 12,646

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The trading terms with customers are largely on credit.
The credit period is generally 90 days (2018: 90 days).
The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has credit control policy in place to
minimise its credit risk. The Group has significant
concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary
course of business due to its relatively small customer
bases. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

1. BRES KRN (&)

MTEPZEZBRAETBERREN
R EEH-—RRIOB(ZZE—-AN
F:90A) o AEEBARIESIARWEEZ
T Ui Bl T I R BB R 42 1 BOR - DA
EREEERR ARAEEZER
AEMAHE/ RitERE AEER
BREZEERRSEST -BHER
HEEETHEN BRKESERRS
REt B

B E SRR REZEB T

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt ARBTFIT

At 1 January w—HA—H 3,354 2,453
Impairment losses recognised B EER 1,235 901
At 31 December Rt+-A=+—8 4,589 3,354

Included in the above impairment of trade receivables is
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
approximately RMB4,589,000 (2018: RMB3,354,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

L EKE SEFRERRE —EHE
FIBEZEVEZERABHEOAR
#4,589,0007T (ZZT—\F: AR
3,354,0007T ) ° Z B @ RRE 2 FE UL
EoRFEFUBRNE s EFPHR -

TEHRZ 5 e R B AT B Uk 8 o X
SEVYERZEEHRFTETENERSD
S ERENE A B FHE AR B9 18 7 o

W E R AL B RO ERA T
“E-hEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

FEWE ZERMK (&)
REE R E LM% HEERFEIR
TS IETE B 5 R UEGIRRE
RIESERRERRAERREES
B-RAERHMEEER EH5RK
REERBEAZEERBRSE LAY
B8O R -TRMEEERTES AT
P& #

Over 6 Over 9
months past months past  Over 1 year
due due past due Total
ok ik
SW6ER  SHER 1ENLEE @t

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.
The Group applies the simplified approach under FRS 9
to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information.
Over3
months past
Current due
Ik
08 $R3fER
At 31 December 2019 R-B-AFT=A=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate ~ fIETHEHERE 0.00% 0.00%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEEE (ARETT) 6,043 16,118
Loss allowance (RMB'000) ERAG(ARETT) - -
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\ETZA=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate ~ METHRHEAE 0.00% 0.00%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) THEEE(ARETT) 8,780 2213
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EREE(ARETT) - -
22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22.

RECEIVABLES

Details of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are as follows:

0.00% 0.00% 100.00%
6,503 288 4,589 33,541
- - 4,589 4,589

0.00% 0.00% 100.00%
1,593 - 3,354 16,000
- - 3,354 3,354

BANRE RERAERRK
]

BN FIA - R R H Al U IA 2 5F
BT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARETT

Prepayments A RIE
Deposits and other receivables 2o K& E fth B WKIE

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

1,578 965
2,200 3,035
3,778 4,000
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A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. B RBAEEEHEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARKFT
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEIER 144 20,749
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash NFEER NEBZHERREE
equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB BEEEXFZEUNAREAEMNBFRR
and placed with banks in the PRC and held in hand. FREZRFTEFEFE -
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. ARBUWIFTTERLBAINENE
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations, B o 1R 5 B B SNEE B IR B - AR S
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign BEESBDEREETINEERS 2
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct RITIAARBE H G o
foreign exchange business.
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on NIRRT RS RBRITBHBITHER
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited MEI LB T KRBT B o RIT4
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. TFHRMEE R4 K& I BB {) A 8%
ZIRAT o
TRADE PAYABLES 24, ERHEZHRR

An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

ENEZERFREEZAHZERED
AT

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETFIT

0 to 90 days 0Z290H 1,241 2,317
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 2,070 230
181 to 365 days 181H =2365H 777 455
Over 365 days HBiE365H 4,944 6,794
9,032 9,796

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. BErRERHtENKE

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Accrued salaries and other payables  J& 53 B & B 4t fE < 2B 60,467 53,611
Accrued expenses Bt X 8,165 6,893
Others Hib 645 2,322
69,277 62,826
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. eNEE

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
R-ZBE-AE RZZT-N\FE RIZE-)NF
+=ZA=+—-H +=-A=+—8H —A—H
Disclosures of HEINZHEEN RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
revenue-related items: BERKE: AREFTT AREFT AR FT
Contract liabilities EHEE 5,170 5,904 5,800
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—RHALFE AR¥TF ARETF T

Revenue recognised in the year that  F#:t ALY EBBEIRNFER

was included in contract liabilities at &R AY UL &5

beginning of year 2,016 717

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+_H=1+T—HIFE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 26. ENEE (&)
2019 2018
—E-hEF — )\
Significant changes in REFESGHNERN RMB’000 RMB’000
contract liabilities during the year: E X # & : AR® T ARETFT
Increase due to operations in the year [ 4F [N & & i 32 0 237 144
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue #E#A #) & (& &= W 3 (2,016) (717)
Sales return HERE 1,045 677
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to BREERBEAEECWEFPLHEM
transfer products or services to a customer for which the MEFEZEERIRENES-
Group has received consideration from the customer.
AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 27. ENRERFME
The advances of approximately RMB1,293,000 (2018: BRAOANRE,293,0007T (ZF—N
RMB1,300,000) are pledged by certain plant and £ AR1,300,0007T) B E THE
machinery and motor vehicles. The remaining balances of RH#BEA R AEERB - BREHOAR
approximately RMB 17,980,000 (2018: RMB18,217,000) are #17,980,000 (ZE—NF: AR
unsecured. #18,217,0007T ) A o
The advances of approximately RMB11,769,000 (2018: SR ANREN1,769,000T (=
RMB19,517,000) are interest-bearing at 4.35% p.a.. The —N\FE: AR®19,51 7,0007E) Tzz
remaining balances of approximately RMB7,504,000 (2018: FRMEAIS%FTE -BRBEBHARK
RMBNil) are non-interest-bearing. 7,504,000 (ZE—NF: ARES
E)Wu#x%\ °
The advances of approximately RMB665,000 (2018: B ANRM665,000 (ZF— N
RMB19,517,000) are repayable on demand. The remaining F: AR®19,517,00070) BIF B K
balances of approximately RMB18,608,000 (2018: RMBNil) BE -EHARE18,608,0007T
have a three-years repayment term. (ZE—N\F: AREZIT)EZHH
RE=%F-
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. RITRHMEE
2019 2018
—ZE-hF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ABR®F T
Bank borrowing RITEE 13,000 13,245
Other borrowings Hipg e 65,177 45,270
78,177 58,515

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. RITREMEE (££)
(continued)
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EEZEEERNT:
2019 2018
—E-nE —E2)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

On demand or within one year BREBRFIR—FN 25,128 58,515
In the second year E-FRN 5,615 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F—EFRTF
(BEEMEBREEN) 47,434 -
78,177 58,515
Less: Amount due for settlement W RNREARNGEE 7 ER
within 12 months (shown RE(RREBBEET
under current liabilities) FIR) (25,128) (58,515)

Amount due for settlement after 12 R12{E BB & & > fEff 2008

months 53,049 -
The guarantees and securities of the bank and other REREFRFITREMEE ZER
borrowings at the end of each reporting period are as BT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMFT ARETT

Secured (Note) B (HfaE) 16,127 19,746
Unsecured 8B H 62,050 38,769
78,177 58,515
Note: B &
The amount is (1) secured by the Group’s right-of-use asset ZHRERMASEEMRFARLEE RS
located at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi, the BEFTHERZ2ERAEEE (BE17) &
PRC (note 17) and certain property, plant and machinery (note BT WE ks (Mizt16) (EEMR
16); and (2) guarantee provided by a shareholder (2018: right- MQQ)—EZRERBEZER (ZE—N\F:
of-use asset, plant and machinery and guarantee provided by a FREEE BWFE NS RIEHAE
shareholder). R) e

1 1 6 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

29.

(continued)

The average effective interest rates at the end of each

reporting period were as follows:

28. SRITRHMMEE (&)

RERERRZFHERMEMOT -

2019 2018

—E-AEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR FT

Interest bearing (Note) ZRE (M) 68,873 50,515
Non-interest bearing TER B 9,304 8,000
78,177 58,515

Note:

The amount is interest bearing at a range from 4.35% to 30%

p.a. (2018: 4.35% to 36% p.a.).

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Bt -

SHIBEN T 4.35%E30% (= F — 1\
4 4 K A.35%E36% ) 2 4 FI K it

iy

29. JEE BT & BY

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBF T
COST: K
At 1 January w—H—H 46,582 25,223
Additions NE 990 21,359
At 31 December N+ -—A=+—H 47,572 46,582
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION E-ag £
At 1 January w—H—H 15,930 14,790
Amortisation for the year FNEE 4,487 1,140
At 31 December N+ —_A=+—H 20,417 15,930
CARRYING AMOUNT: BREE -
At 31 December R+ -—A=+—H 27,155 30,652
WERBAKENREERDH

—B-NEEH

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—FT—hNF+-_HA=+—HIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
2019 2018
—E-NF —T\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF ARBF T
Authorised, issued and fully paid: ETE CBEITREBERE:
198,860,000 (2018: 198,860,000) 198,860,0008% ( —Z— \4F:
domestic shares of RMB0.10 each 198,860,000/% ) & A& EI1E A
RE0.10T 2 RE K 19,886 19,886
110,000,000 (2018: 110,000,000) 110,000,0000% ( =& — \4F :
H shares of RMB0.10 each 110,000,0000% ) BREEIE A
ER¥0.107T Z HI& 11,000 11,000
30,886 30,886

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be the
PRC investors or foreign investors, domestic shares and H
shares rank pari passu with each other.

31. RESERVES
Group
(i) Capital surplus
The capital surplus of the Group represents the

excess of the issue price over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued at a premium.

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve

The Company’s articles of association require the
appropriation of 10% of the Company's profit
after tax each year to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the Company’s
registered capital. According to the provisions of
the Company’s articles of association, in normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall
only be used for making up losses, capitalisation
into share capital and expansion of the Company’s
production and operations. For the capitalisation of
the statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31.

Company

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements
therein for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as

W (F)

LN
ARARBE-T—AF+ A
St HLFEZREREEDZ S

follows: RN
Statutory
Capital surplus Other Accumulated

surplus reserve reserve losses Total

BXER iEERBEE  HtRE  ZiERE @it

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000

ARETT  ABETn ARBTT ARETT  ARETx

At 1 January 2018 R-F-N5-A-H 18561 11,853 - (080 (4046)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEERAR - - - (29,333) (29,333)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019~ W=F-\E+-A=+-Bk
“E-nE-A-A 18,561
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EERAE -

At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=1-A 18,561

11,853 - (100,193) (69,779)
- 971 (8,134) (7157)
11,853 971 (108,327) (76,936)

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in

32. GEBRERERMEE

METHELE2EEZ2D

TRINTAFERARAEEREEHE

liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: ErBEZEE:
Interest
payble
(included in Amounts Bank Total liabilities
other due to and other from financing
payable)  shareholders borrowings activities
FEA3H 2
(sFAE At REFEHZ RITK
BAHER) BAIRRME HitifEE AREHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE—-\E—A—H - 13,780 33,460 47,240
Change in cash flows BeREY - 5,180 20,340 25,520
Non-cash changes FELEF
- Interest charges - FEER - 557 4,715 5,272
At 31 December 2018 and R=F-N\F+=fA
1 January 2019 =t-BK
R-Z-1%-A—-H - 19,517 58,515 78,032
Change in cash flows BEREH (1,424) 423 15,713 14,712
Non-cash changes kReED
- Gain on loan modification — BEFE 2 W& - (977) (1,159) (2,136)
- Fair value gain on a - HERZAAERS
new loan - - (2,347) (2,347)
- Interest charges - FEER 1,424 797 8,154 10,375
- Interest waiver granted — BF2ZHE &K - (487) (699) (1,186)
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-1%§
+ZB=+-H - 19,273 78,177 97,450

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2019
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BAKIE
AEERRERR 2 ERFEDT

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-—hE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for DT 4918 i R B
— Buildings — BF

Contracted contribution to subsidiaries [AIMI/&B A B pT1ET 49 & Bh
(Note 18) (KHtax18)

Contracted contribution to associates M EE & QB PTER] 40 8 B
(Note 19) (BfaE19)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
is disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Contract liabilities

The Group has received consideration from an
associate of approximately RMB237,000 (2018:
RMBNil) were increased due to operations in the
year.

(a)

(b)

20,186 5,129
40,440 35,440

329 329
60,955 40,898

3. BEAELRE

FTEEEABZHRM
TE2EEABZHMHER GRS
MR MIFE3

eHNEaE

AEBBWE —KBE A FRE
£ AR #237,000T (ZZE— N\
FARBEZIL) BRFANE
TSI INFT BN -

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
—ER-NEFR
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. At =ZA=1+—BZX23H

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER B 35 AR O 3/
2019 2018
—E-RE —E-N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WEREE 107,899 91,357
Right-of-use assets EREEE 10,241 10,534
Interests in associates AN 42 -
118,182 101,891

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =g 10,942 8,995
Trade receivables JEUE ZEBR K 28,322 12,358
Prepayments, deposits and B e R EH M E Y RIE

other receivables 3,427 3,879
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NGIE O] 370 20,282
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEMEEL 6 247

43,067 45,761
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables FENE 5 RRK 8,833 9,596
Accruals and other payables JE &t R IB K LA FE 5 RRIE 69,215 62,787
Contract liabilities EHEE 4,933 5,904
Amounts due to shareholders FE AR B FR A 665 19,517
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 24,841 58,089
108,487 155,893

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEEHE (65,420) (110,132)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERAEBERRBAR

LIABILITIES EEFHE 52,762 (8,241)

1 2 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER
(continued)

35. RTZA=+—HBAER2FH

BgMRRE (F)
2019 2018
—E-hE B N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FRT ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred government grants RER T E B

Due to a shareholder JE St — AL IR R FIE
Bank and other borrowing RITREMEER
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE

EQUITY s

Share capital AR

Reserves fFE

TOTAL EQUITY AR

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
company on 30 June 2020.

27,155 30,652
18,608 -
53,049 -
98,812 30,652
(46,050) (38,893)
30,886 30,886
(76,936) (69,779)
(46,050) (38,893)

36. HLEBEHER
HEGAMBRECKR -E-TEX
A-+REAATESS I ERIEE
|55

WA RBMAEEMROERD A
“E-NEER
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EIFEMBRE

The following is a summary of the audited results and of the TR AEFBHEEZ_ZT—LF+=-H
assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 —t+HIhHEAFE  EESREENEE
December 2019. BEHBEE-

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-RA=t—-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—g-hEFE —FN\F —FtF —T-F —F-If
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

RESULTS EF
Revenue g 39,609 26,386 19,121 18,731 43,282
Operating profit/(loss) e ww,
(E518) 1,056 (23,969) (25,403) (30,444) (13,574)

Finance costs WKER (9,189) (5,272) (3,173) (3,158) (1,323)
Loss before tax BRFE A B 18 (8,133) (29,241) (28,576) (33,602) (14,897)
Income tax expense FTSHMX (1) - - - -
Loss for the year FREE (8,134) (29,241) (28,576) (33,602) (14,897)
Attributable to: AT REAR

Owners of the Company ~ AREIHEE A (8,120) (29,237) (28,535) (33,596) (14,855)

Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥EAE % (14) (4) (41) (6) (42)

(8,134) (29,241) (28,576) (33,602) (14,897)

At 31 December
Rt+t=BA=+-H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—g-hF —T)N\F ZFtF ZTF —FT-IF
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥(EHEE

Total assets EERE 162,034 148,317 115,068 123,732 139,824
Total liabilities BER% (208,084)  (187,210) (124,720) (104,808) (87,298)
Non-controlling interests IEERRER 43 29 25 (16) (22)

Total equity attributable to AN B A A E(S

owners of the Company g (46,007) (38,864) (9,627) 18,908 52,504

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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